
 
 

 
 

 
NOTIFICATION TO ATTEND MEETING OF THE SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 

 
TO BE HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL, DAME STREET, DUBLIN 2. 

 
ON WEDNESDAY, 18 JANUARY 2017 AT 3.00 PM 

 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

WEDNESDAY, 18 JANUARY 2017 
 

  PAGE 
 
1   Minutes of Meeting held on 14th December 2016    

 
1 - 8 

2   Questions to the South Central Area Manager   
 

9 - 14 

3   Roads & Traffic Matters 
 

(i). Minutes of Traffic Advisory Group held on the 20th December 2016   
            in relation to Traffic Matters in the South Central Area, (report   

attached). 
(ii). Traffic Service Requests, Status Report at 15th December 2016,  
             (report attached). 

 

15 - 40 

4   South Central Area Matters 
 

(i). Report on the 2017 Road Maintenance Works Programme for the 
South Central Area, (report attached).  

(ii). Housing Allocations Report at January 2017, (report attached). 
(iii). Gully Cleaning Programme Report for the South Central Area, 

(report attached). 
(iv).      Area Manager’s Report. 

 

41 - 60 

5   Community, Culture, Economic and Emergency Services 
 

(i). Public Library Events for January 2017 – South Central Area, 
(report      

            attached). 
(ii). Sport and Recreation Report for January  2017 – South Central 

Area  
            (report attached). 

 

61 - 70 

6   Planning and Economic Development Matters 
 

71 - 78 



 
 

(i). Proposed disposal of a substation site on Curlew Road, Drimnagh, 

Dublin 8 to the ESB, (report attached).  

(ii). Proposed disposal of laneway abutting 18 Downpatrick Road, 

Crumlin, Dublin 12, (report attached). 

 
7   Emergency Motions   

 
 

8   January 2017 Motions 
 

DUBLIN CITY COUNCIL 
SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 

18th January 2016 
 
479  Councillor Tina MacVeigh 

Noting: 
- the historic importance of the Iveagh Markets; 
- the lack of community amenities in the Liberties Village; 
- the length of time the Markets have remained undeveloped and the 
contribution this makes to the severe dereliction of the area of special 
character of John Dillon Street and surrounds, this Area Committee 
requires that Dublin City Council should : 
1)  Fulfil its own mission to tackle dereliction and take back responsibility 
for the development of the Iveagh Markets including a consideration of 
acquiring the building if necessary/possible; 
2)  Commit and secure funding to develop the building within a two years 
as a central hub for community, cultural, social enterprise, tourism and 
heritage activities in the Liberties. 
This redevelopment of Iveagh Markets should be addressed urgently as it 
affects the development of the surrounding area and impacts negatively 
on local communities. 
We also agree to forward this motion, if agreed, to the next meeting of 
Dublin City Council for consideration'. 

 
480   Councillor Daithí Doolan 

This Committee commends the residents of Tyrone Place on the recent 
report into dampness in the flats. That Dublin City Council compiles and 
publishes, within 8 weeks, a report outlining the best option for Tyrone 
Plane. The report will include exploring the options of DCC accessing 
finance to carry out refurbishment of the flats or detenanting the flats and 
redeveloping the site.  

 
481  Councillor Greg Kelly 

This Area Committee asks the Council to have the laneway at the rear 
of Balfe Ave, Walkinstown (Entrance opposite the Up’s A Daisy Crèche on 
Somerville Park.) to be concreted. The surface of the lane way is very 
uneven and the residents in the area are quite elderly and I feel this is an 
accident waiting to happen. This laneway is also attracting a lot of 
dumping and if it is concreted also it would make it easier to try and keep 
clean. 

 
482  Councillor Paul Hand & Councillor Pat Dunne 

That this Area Committee supports the ongoing work of Addiction 
Response Crumlin and commends all the staff there in providing 
necessary services throughout the Dublin 12 area. Furthermore this Area 
Committee supports the continued presence of ARC at their current 

 



 
 

premises on the Crumlin Road and hope that they can secure their long 
term future at this location. To this end, we request that on agreeing 
this Motion this Area Committee write to the following Ministers and 
Government Departments to request a grant so that ARC can purchase 
their current home as outlined in their proposal document which is to 
accompany the letter to the relevant bodies. 
Minister for Justice 
Minister for Social Protection 
Minister for Health 
Minister for Children.  
Probation Service 
TUSLA 
HSE 

 
483 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 

This Area Committee supports the occupation of Apollo House by housing 
activists and calls on Dublin City Council management to implement the 
following motion agreed at the city council meeting on 10th November 
2014:  
 
That this Council open an ‘Unused Properties Register’. The owners of 
private properties that have been unused/ empty for a period of more than 
six months (as per CSO Census 2011 and other official statistics) will be 
required to register their intention for use with Council. Where these 
properties remain idle for a period exceeding six months of registration 
date or where Council is not satisfied with intended use, by the powers 
granted to it under Section 213 (2) (A) of the Planning and Development 
Act (2000), this Council will immediately requisition these properties for 
immediate use as emergency housing, paying no more than a nominal 
transaction fee to the owner. 

 
484   Councillor Daithí Doolan 

That this South Central Area Committee commends those involved in 
taking action to provide essential homeless accommodation in Apollo 
House. We urge DRHE to work with the organisers to ensure this 
accommodation is sustainable and supported. 

 
485 Councillor Greg Kelly 

This Area Committee calls on the Area Manager to start the process of 
installing Smart Bins in Dublin South Central. These bins should be the 
same used by Dun Laoghaire, which have proven to be a success. The 
bins should be used in busy retail areas to start, with a plan to install them 
throughout the area. 

 
486 Councillor Paul Hand 

That this Area Committee notes with concern that local drug and alcohol 
projects have not had any funding increases in nearly a decade (in fact 
they have had their funding hacked by nearly 50% in the same period), 
despite the fact that front line services have been seriously stretched in 
the intervening period. To improve social services locally and nationally we 
request that the Minister for Communities and the National Drugs Strategy 
increase funding by at least 10% to all locally funded projects through the 
HSE and to all Regional and Local Drugs and Alcohol Task Forces 
nationally by at least the same amount. To this end we request the Area 
Manager write to the Minister with the contents of this motion. 

 
487  Councillor Daithí Doolan 



 
 

This Area Committee strongly condemns the recent attack on building 
workers in Cherry Orchard and we urge the Gardaí and others to work 
with Cooperative Housing Ireland to ensure adequate protection is 
provided by Gardaí for the duration of the construction of the 72 social 
units of housing. 

 
488 Councillor Greg Kelly 

This Area Committee calls for the inspection of the heating system in 
Canal View Apartments, Bluebell, Dublin 12. The heating system keeps 
failing for a number of tenants and some have waited up to 2 weeks over 
Christmas to get them fixed. If there is a fail found in the system DCC 
should do what it can to get it repaired as a matter of urgency. 

 
9   December Questions and Answers   

 
79 - 94 

 



MINUTES OF SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE MEETING  
HELD ON 14th DECEMBER 2016  

ORDUITHE A DEINEADH AN COISTE CHEANTAR AN LARDHEISCIRT 
14 NOLLAIG 2016 

 
462. Minutes of Meeting held on 16th November 2016          
            Order: Agreed.    
 
463. Questions to Dublin Chief Executive 

 Replies to Questions and the Area Manager’s report circulated. 
          
 
464. Roads & Traffic Matters 
 (i)    Minutes of Traffic Advisory Group held on the 25th November 2016   

       in relation to Traffic Matters in the South Central Area. 
(ii)   Traffic Service Requests, Status Report at 15th November 2016.  
Order:   (i)    Noted. 

                          (ii)   Noted. 
 
465.  South Central Area 

                    (i) Presentation on Cherry Orchard. 
           (ii)    Dates and deadlines for Area Committee Meetings in 2017. 
           (iii)   Update report on the 2016 Discretionary Fund Projects. 
           (iv)   Gully Cleaning Programme report for the South Central Area. 
           (v)    Area Manager’s Report. 

Order:      (i)    Presentation given by David O’Donovan, Community and Social  
                        Development Officer.  Presentation noted.  
       (ii)   Agreed.            
                (iii)   Report noted. 

  (iv)   Report noted. 
   (v)   The following report was given and was noted by the Members: - 

 
Area Manager’s Report 

South Central Area Committee 
Wednesday 14th December 2016 

 
 
January Area Committee Meeting 
Just two reminders for the January Area Committee Meeting:- 

 the last date for submission of Questions and Motions for the January Meeting is 
5.00pm on Wednesday the 4th of January 2017.  

 Also as we will be using modern.gov for the January Meeting there will no longer 
be hard copies of the Agenda printed for that meeting or all future Area 
Committee Meetings.   

 
 
SOUTH WEST INNER CITY AREA OFFICE REPORT 
 
St. Teresa’s Gardens  
Phase 1 of the St. Teresa’s Gardens Regeneration Masterplan is now complete following the 
demolition of the 6 blocks on the Eugene Street side of the site. The refurbishment of 2 
blocks at the front of the complex is also complete. There are currently 3 occupied flats in 
the 4 remaining blocks awaiting demolition. Tenders are being prepared at present to 
demolish the 2 rearmost vacant blocks. The football and boxing clubs are expected to move 

Page 1



into new ground floor premises in the front refurbished block in December. Enabling works 
for the building of 34 houses and 16 apartments commenced earlier this summer. Tenders 
documents are due to be issued in quarter 2 2017 with a view to the construction of the new 
dwellings starting in quarter 3 next year. Precinct Improvement Works in the area between 
the refurbished blocks are due to commence in early 2017. This will include a small 
playground, plaza, additional parking and electronic gates.  
 
Dolphin House 
A part VIII planning application was approved at the October 2014 City Council meeting for 
demolition, new build and refurbishment at Dolphin House (phase 1). A total of 96 existing 
flats will be replaced by 100 new units. The demolition of the 2 ‘canal blocks was completed 
earlier this year whilst the new build and refurbishment commenced on 17th October.  
 
The refurbishment of the ‘long blocks’ will be phase 2 of the project. A site at the rear of the 
football pitch has been identified for older persons apartments. Planning permission was 
granted to Fold Housing Association in November for 42 units of this type of accommodation 
together with a community centre. Construction (subject to possible planning appeal) is likely 
to start in early 2017. It would be the intention to transfer the existing tenants in Dolphin Park 
to the new dwellings. Dolphin Park, which consists of 44 bedsits, would then be demolished 
to allow for new housing to be developed on the site.   
 
New Public Park, Cork Street 
A Part 8 Planning Application for a 0.6 hectare neighbourhood park on the site of the 
demolished Chamber Court and Weavers Court flats on Cork Street was agreed at the 
December 2015 City Council meeting. Enabling works (including archaeological 
investigations) were completed in July. Tenders for the main park works are being evaluated 
at present. It is expected that the park will be completed by summer 2017. 
 
Dolphins Barn 
A consultant has been appointed to prepare a Public Realm Improvement Plan for Dolphins 
Barn. The cost associated with the plan is provided for in the 2016 Discretionary Fund. A 
very well attended community workshop took place in St. Andrews Community Centre on 
28th November. 
 
Crane Street/Sugar House Lane 
It is planned to enhance pedestrian access along this important and busy tourist route. The 
works include the widening of the existing footpaths and the narrowing of the carriageway. A 
Part 8 planning application was agreed at November City Council meeting with construction 
likely to commence early next year with a works period of 3 to 4 months. 
  
Newmarket 
A Public Realm Improvement Plan for Newmarket Square and its environs is substantially 
complete. The Plan describes, supports and guides the implementation of improvements to 
enhance the use and attractiveness of the area. A report in relation to the plan was 
presented at July’s Area Committee meeting whilst a part 8 planning application is being 
finalized at present.  
 
Francis Street 
A consultant has been appointed to facilitate the preparation of a Part 8 planning application 
for the Francis Street Environmental Improvement Scheme. Stakeholder meetings are due 
to take place in early 2017. 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



Ceannt Fort, Mount Brown 
Following a series of meetings agreement has been reached with local residents for the 
refurbishment of the play area at Ceannt Fort. It is expected that this work will be carried out 
in mid December weather permitting. 
Michael Mallin House 
Works to convert 4 bedsits into 2 x 1 bedroomed units are due to commence on 12th 
December with an expected completion date of March 2017. Similar work is ongoing in 
Basin Street to convert 8 bedsits into 4 x 1 bedroomed units.   
 
Kilmainham Inchicore Network 
The Kilmainham Inchicore Network facilitates the economic, social, cultural and 
environmental development and enhancement of the Kilmainham and Inchicore district.  
Since the end of October 2016, there have been seven meetings of the Network.  These 
have been public meetings open to active citizens asking them what their main issues are in 
relation to development of the area.  The meetings have been attended by between 75 and 
20 persons, held in various locations across Inchicore and Kilmainham (including Inchicore 
College, Richmond Barracks, Hilton Kilmainham, Oblate Campus and a vacant shop unit in 
Inchicore Village).  
 
Crumlin/Kimmage/South Inner City Community Update December 2016 
The Community & Social Development Team has recently being reassigned across the 
South Central Area to better reflect the electoral boundaries. Pat Teehan will head the 
Crumlin/Kimmage/South Inner City Team. We would ask for your patience while we settle 
our teams into their new roles, areas and responsibilities, meet new groups and make the 
connections necessary for the smooth running of projects in the area. 
 
Residents Groups 
We are supporting the residents of various areas to start/restart Residents/Community 
Groups in order to support areas in environmental improvements, deal with issues, support 
family/youth projects etc across the area. 
 
Dolphin House & Dolphin’s Barn 
We are working with the residents of Dolphin House to develop a programme to 
photographically document the regeneration of Dolphin House. It’s hoped to have resident 
participation in the capturing the development in photographs and put together an exhibition 
to show the transformation.  
 
A reading of “A Christmas Carol” will take place in Our Lady Of Dolours will take place on 
18th Dec at 2pm by the Back Of The Pipes Residents Association. 
 
Romanian Cultural Day   
Romanians in Ireland organised a full day of traditional songs and dance in the F2 Centre 
including traditional costumes, products and crafts and amazing Romanian food. 
 
Older Persons Christmas Celebrations 
A number of Christmas Parties across the Crumlin/Kimmage/Liberties area are being 
supported by community staff including a Christmas dinner with music and presents for the 
elderly neighbours of the Guinness Storehouse which will be held in the Storehouse and will 
cater for 60 -70 residents from the locality. The event will be attended by Cllr. Ray McHugh 
on behalf of the Lord Mayor of Dublin on the 14/12/16 at 12.00hr 
 
LECP Consultation 
Dublin City Council and the two SICAP implementers have completed their work on the 
LECP Consultation. New plans have been drawn up with specific responsibilities for each 

Page 3



implementer and Dublin City Council. A number of collaborative projects have been agreed 
and will be implemented in 2017. 
 
Liberties Schools 
Eric Dempsey, noted ornithologist is delivering workshops to 4 schools in the Liberties Area 
in association with Dublin City Council community staff.  
 
Ceannt Fort 
Work has begun to enable the resident of Ceannt Fort to celebrate the centenary of their 
housing estate.  
 
Christmas Tree Lighting 
All Christmas Tree lighting across the area have been supported and attended by 
community staff. 
 
Community Grants 2017 
Work has been completed locally on the proposed allocation of Informal Education and 
Community Grants Schemes across the area. It is expected that the results of this work will 
be presented to local councillors in early January.  
 
 
CRUMLIN AREA OFFICE REPORT 
 
New Children’s Playground – Stannaway Park 
A new children’s play area in Stannaway Park is intended to be created.  The play area will 
cater for young children aged between 2 and 7 years of age and it is expected that the works 
will be carried out and completed early 2017. This small play area will be natural in style to 
blend in with the grassland of the existing park.  Play features will be constructed of natural 
materials and will be set into the landscape within gentle mounded forms.  Seating will be 
provided as part of the works. 
 
Improvement works at Cashel Avenue and Captains Avenue 
The construction of improvement works at Cashel Avenue and Captains Avenue, consisting 
of new parking zones, new footpaths and a plinth wall surrounding the green, will commence 
in January 2017, weather permitting.  These works will be funded from the South Central 
Area Discretionary Fund 2016.  
 
Brickfield Park 
Works have begun on the all weather pitch in Brickfield Park and are progressing well.  
Synthetic carpet & shock pad will be laid in January 2017 subject to weather conditions.  
Whilst construction works at this time of year are very much weather dependent, it is 
expected that the project will be completed by March 2017. 
 
Bunting Park 
The boundary hedging surround Bunting Park along Balfe Avenue will be removed and 
replaced with new railings.  These works will be carried out in December 2016 and are 
funded from the South Central Area Discretionary Fund 2016. 
  
 
BALLYFERMOT AREA OFFICE REPORT 
 
Ballyfermot/Drimnagh Community Update  
2017 Community Grant Scheme 
Over 250 applications were received in the South Central Area which are currently being 
processed. The grants provide a great opportunity for the community staff to make contact 

Page 4



and meet with the majority of the groups to offer support and assistance. It is proposed to 
hold a pre meeting with the elected representatives in January in advance of the February 
Area Meeting Area Meeting.  
Feb. 15th 2017  Report submitted to the Area Committee. 
March 2017  Full report for the five areas to March City Council Meeting 
   Payment of grants made subject to approval of City Council  
Comhairle N’OG 
28 young people representing 13 schools attended the Comhairle N’OG AGM in late 
November. Six young people will represent the area on the Committee for 2017. Their 
chosen topic for 2017 is Homelessness. 
 
Drimnagh / Walkinstown / Bluebell 
Dublin City Council is working with the Associated Bluebell Community group and has 
recently set up an environmental group to work towards creating a greener and cleaner 
Bluebell. Over 35 residents have volunteered to take part in this initiative which is being 
supported by the City Council. 
 
Drimnagh Ladies Club has operated from Our Lady’s Hall Mourne Road since it opened and 
will be celebrating their 50th anniversary in 2017. Dublin City Council will be supporting them 
to organise a programme of events to mark the occasion and to encourage new members to 
the group. 
 
Ballyfermot / Chapelizod 
The Ballyfermot Office is currently producing a Cold Weather information card with useful 
numbers particularly for older people. Contact will be made with Resident and Community 
Groups to encourage them to drop the information cards into older residents in their area 
over the Christmas period. 
 
Dublin City Council staff are supporting the following initiatives for older people in the area: 
the newly formed choir for older people with dementia, a weekly sewing and craft group and 
a weekly dance class. 
 
Kilmainham / Inchicore 
The Community development team are working with the Kilmainham Inchicore Network and 
have attended the public meetings looking at the formation of three subcommittees to 
develop plans around the economic, social, cultural, physical and environmental 
development of the area. 
 
LECP Consultation 
Community staff are working with the Ballyfermot Partnership and the South City Partnership 
community teams as part of SICAP to implement community development actions resulting 
from the LECP consultations. 
 
 
 
Out of Office / Emergency Numbers 

Hours 
 

Phone 
Number 

Email Comments 

8.00 am to 
6.00 pm 

222 2222 or  
222 1000 
 

customerservices@dublincity.ie Customer Services 

Out of office  
hours (after 
6.00 p.m.) 

679 6186 customerservices@dublincity.ie All queries e.g. Traffic, 
Roads, Control of Horses, 
Housing etc. 

 

Page 5



 
 
466.  Community, Culture, Economic and Emergency Services 
           (i)     Public Library Events for December 2016 – South Central Area. 
           (ii)    Sport and Recreation Report for December 2016 – South Central Area.  

Order:   (i)    Noted. 
                          (ii)   Noted. 
  
467      Planning and Economic Development Matters 

(i)    Proposed disposal of a plot of land to the front of 16 Nash Street, Dublin 8.  
(ii) Proposed grant of a 3 year licence of part of the premises known as the  

                   Bluebell Community & Youth Centre, Bluebell Road, Dublin 12. 
(iii) Proposed grant of a further licence of part of the premises known as the  

             Bluebell Community & Youth Centre, Bluebell Road, Dublin 12.  
(iv) Proposed grant of a further licence of part of the premises known as the  
       Bluebell Community & Youth Centre, Bluebell Road, Dublin 12. 
Order:   (i)    Agreed. Recommend to Council. 
              (ii)    Agreed. Recommend to Council. 
             (iii)   Agreed. Recommend to Council. 

                    (iv)  Agreed. Recommend to Council.  
 

 
 
 
DUBLIN CITY COUNCIL 

SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE  
14th December 2016 

 
Emergency Motions 
The meeting was suspended to deal with an Emergency Motion submitted by 
Councillor Pat Dunne. This Motion was later withdrawn.  
 
468   Councillor Vincent Jackson 

That Dublin City Council bring forward imaginative plans for the redevelopment of the 
following sites in public ownership 
1. The Gambles site 14 to 19 Maidens Row, Chapelizod, Dublin 20. 
2. The Springvale Site Old Lucan Road, Chapelizod, Dublin 20. 
3. The Old CORNAMONA site on Kylemore Road, Ballyfermot, Dublin 10. 
These sites are prime development sites screaming out for development.  The lack of 
action in a housing crisis leaves a lot to be desired. 
Order: Report to Councillor. 
 

469 Councillor Ray McHugh 
This Area Committee agree, that a memorial garden and Plaque be placed at the 
Green area facing the Dolphins Barn Fire Station, in memory of all members of the 
Fire service who lost their lives to save others, and funding for this memorial be 
made available from any surplus from the commemoration or from the 2017 
discretionary funding. 
Order: Agreed. 
 

470   Councillor Daithí Doolan (amended 14/12/16) 
This Committee expresses deep concern at the Council's proposal to build another 
53 Rapid Build homes in Cherry Orchard, and request effective consultation on 
future housing development in Cherry Orchard. 
Order: Agreed as amended. 

Page 6



 
471  Councillor Pat Dunne 

This Area Committee notes with concern the effective downgrading of the Crumlin 
Area office and calls upon the Area Manager and the Dublin City CEO to adequately 
staff the office so as to ensure that the public counter is open to the public throughout 
the daytime hours from Monday to Friday each week. We also call upon the Area 
Manager to place on site in the Crumlin Area office a full level of staff particularly in 
the Housing, Estate Management and Community Development sections.   
Order: Agreed to refer to the Chief Executive. 

 
472  Councillor Paul Hand 

That Dublin City Council recognises the global growth in the sport of MMA (Mixed 
Martial Arts) and the opportunities this sport potentially gives to the economic growth 
of this City. To this end the Area Committee requests the Economic Development 
and Enterprise SPC, the Planning and International Relations SPC and Dublin City 
Council staff to do the following. 

 Develop a plan for enticing MMA events to be held in the Dublin City Council 
Area. 

 Build a relationship with the UFC, with the long term aim to have an annual 
Fight Night event held in the 3 Arena in and around St. Patrick's week. 

 In the event there is an Irish champion in the UFC to attempt to get a title fight 
held in either Croke Park or Lansdowne Road in the summer months. 

 Build a relationship with other MMA organisations and attempt to get them 
hold events in Ireland, such as Bellator, ONE FC, Invicta FC, WSOF, EFC 
etc. 

Order: Agreed to refer to the Economic Development and Enterprise SPC, the 
Planning and International Relations SPC. 

 
473  Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 

That this Area Committee support the campaign to save Kilmainham Mill. The Mill is 
falling into a continuous state of deterioration. There have been several attempts by 
various groups to rescue the mill over the past 20 years but all have failed. This mill 
is the last opportunity to conserve and celebrate the industrial heritage of Dublin and 
we call on D.C.C. to do all it can to save the mill. 
Order: Agreed.  Report to Councillors. 
 

474  Councillor Tina Mac Veigh 
This Area Committee supports the newly established “Save the Kilmainham Mill 
Campaign”, acknowledging a role for the Council in taking ownership of and 
protecting this structure which is an integral part of the Heritage of the area. 
Order: Agreed.  Report to Councillors. 
 

475  Councillor Vincent Jackson 
That Dublin City Council please give a full visual report to all elected members of the 
disgraceful state & filth of the Le Fanu Road Shopping Centre, Ballyfermot, Dublin 
10,  next to the ICELAND Food Store with a specific objective of having the area 
cleaned and maintained. The last few months the situation has gone from bad to 
worse with dumping, rat infestation etc. Someone has to be made accountable for 
the management of this private car-park / shopping centre this current situation would 
not be tolerated anywhere else. 
Order: Report to Councillor. 
 
 
 

Page 7



476   Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 
That this Area Committee fully support the community of Rialto in their campaign to 
save their post office. The loss of this much needed facility will cause a lot of 
inconvenience and hardship for the elderly community in particular. The nearest post 
office is Dolphin's Barn Street which is too far away and if elderly people get a lift 
there is little if no parking there. That this Area Committee agree that the Manager 
contact An Post to express our dissatisfaction with the loss of the Post Office and the 
need to keep the facility in that area. 
Order: Agreed to write to An Post. 
 

477  Councillor Vincent Jackson 
That Dublin City Council take responsibility to clean, maintain and secure lands in its 
ownership next to Park West / Cherry Orchard Train Station.  The current situation is 
our site is creating all sorts of anti-social issues for users of the Train Station and the 
local community with stone throwing, gangs congregating etc. What are our plans for 
these important lands next to a vital transportation corridor? 
Order: Report to Councillor. 

 
478 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

That Dublin City Council look upon the possibility of providing a pilot Christmas 
Lighting scheme to the Ballyfermot, Inchicore Areas of Dublin South Central. This 
pilot could pave the way for all our Villages to have a lighting scheme like Clondalkin 
included.  This would aid urban regeneration and bring some Christmas spirit to our 
communities.  The trees Dublin City Council provide are beautiful.  However, we 
must add to it by pricing a lighting scheme etc. 
Order: Report to Councillor. 

 
 
Councillor Paul Hand 
Chairperson  
15th December 2016 
 
 
Attendance 
 
Councillors 
Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh, Councillor Daithí Doolan, Councillor Pat Dunne, Councillor 
Paul Hand,  Councillor Vincent Jackson, Councillor Greg Kelly,  Councillor Ray McHugh, 
Councillor Tina MacVeigh, Councillor Rebecca Moynihan, Councillor Hazel de Nortúin, 
Councillor Michael Mullooly, Councillor Daithí De Róiste. 
 
Officials 
Peter Finnegan, Area Manager, South Central Area 
Bruce Phillips, Senior Executive Officer, South Central Area;  
Kay Noonan Cork, Area Housing Manager, South West Inner City; 
Declan Ronan, Area Housing Manager, Crumlin Area Office; 
Pat Teehan Community & Social Development Officer, Ballyfermot Area Office; 
Miriam Flynn, Asst. Community Development Officer, South Central Area; 
Lois Salmon,. Community Officer, South Central Area; 
David Healy, Administrative Officer, South Central Area;  
David O’Donovan, Community & Social Development Officer, South Central;   
Adrian Dowling, Assistant Engineer, Traffic Management & Control; 
Karen Clarke, Staff Officer, South Central Office; 
Cora Roche, Assistant Staff Officer, South Central Office; 
Cathriona Woulfe, Senior Staff Officer, South Central Office. 

Page 8



DUBLIN CITY COUNCIL 
SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 

18th January 2017 
 

 
Q1 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 

To ask our Housing Maintenance Department to repair the windows at our tenant's 
property 163 Clonard Road, Crumlin. The tenant reports that the windows are stuck 
and will not open, thus presenting a fire hazard. 
 
 

Q2 Councillor Daithí Doolan 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 
Q3 Councillor Daithí Doolan 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 
Q4 Councillor Daithí Doolan 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 
Q5 Councillor Daithí Doolan 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 
Q6 Councillor Daithí Doolan 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 
Q7 Councillor Daithí Doolan 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 
Q8 Councillor Daithí Doolan 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 

 
Q9 Councillor Rebecca Moynihan 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 

Q10 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 
To ask the Area Manager that a follow up call be made by (details supplied). 

 
Q11 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 

To ask the Area Manager to ask our Planning Department to provide this Councillor 
with a report of all complaints that have been made in relation to the construction 
sites at (details supplied). 

 
Q12 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 

To ask the Area Manager to ask  the relevant Department whether any of our street 
cleaning teams operate in the vicinity of Blackpitts, Mill Street, Warrenmount 
Dublin 8 between the hours of 6 and 8am. 

 
Q13 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 

To ask the Area Manager to repair the windows which do not open at our tenants 
home at (details supplied). 

 
Q14 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 

To ask the Area Manager to investigate and repair a suspected leak at our tenants 
home at  (details supplied). 

Page 9



Q15 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 
To ask the Area Manager to repair the windows at our tenant's property (detail 
supplied).  

 
Q16 Councillor Rebecca Moynihan 

To ask the Area Manager for an update on the tender process for Chamber Park and 
if he can give a date for when the contractors will commence work.  

 
Q17 Councillor Rebecca Moynihan 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 
Q18 Councillor Rebecca Moynihan 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 
Q19 Councillor Rebecca Moynihan 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 
Q20 Councillor Ray McHugh 

To ask the Area Manager to confirm  if (details supplied) is on our housing list and if 
so what is his position. 

 
Q21 Councillor Greg Kelly 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 
Q22 Councillor Greg Kelly 
 To ask the Area Manager if he can supply (details supplied). 
 
Q23 Councillor Greg Kelly 
 To ask the Area Manager to supply (details supplied). 
 
Q24 Councillor Greg Kelly 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 
Q25 Councillor Greg Kelly 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 
Q26 Councillor Greg Kelly 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 
Q27 Councillor Greg Kelly 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 
Q28 Councillor Daithí Doolan 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied). 
 
Q29 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

To ask the Area Manager that the tree stump outside 16 Cloiginn Road, Ballyfermot, 
Dublin 10, be removed and the footpath re- instated. I asked a few months ago and 
was told when a crew was available it would be done. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



Q30 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
To ask the Area Manager to look at the possibility of opening the walk way facing the 
Park at Cloiginn Road, numbers 1 to 13. The current situation is residents cannot 
park in their gardens and leaving your car outside your home restricts others passing 
by. The widening of this access, moving back of the railings and plinth wall and a 
break within the lane would stop through traffic here. The area is badly maintained by 
Dublin City Council and these works would allow an upgrade of the area. 

 
Q31 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

To ask the Area Manager to ask the Parks Department to please look at the ongoing 
problem of horses and littering particularly at Le Fanu/Rossmore Drive entrance of 
the park. It is high time Dublin City Council took a more pro-active approach in 
tackling the horse and waste issue here. This beautiful park is becoming a no go 
area for most with stray horses etc. There is an urgent need for CCTV to tackle the 
dumping etc here. 

 
Q32 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

To ask the Area Manager to look at the following (details supplied). 
 
Q33 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

To ask the Area Manager to look at the ownership and management of the car-park 
at the Le Fanu Road Shopping Centre, Ballyfermot. The area is constantly strewn 
with litter, pot holes etc. Nowhere else would this situation be tolerated. Can we levy 
additional commercial rates and do the works needed with the proceeds. 

 
Q34 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

To ask the Area Manager to look at (details supplied). 
 
Q35 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

Can the Area Manager please look at fly dumping situation in the Barnville Park area 
of Cherry Orchard.   Residents have told me serious dumping is now an ongoing 
issue in Cherry Orchard Crescent, Park, Parade. Perhaps an area wide survey needs 
to be done to try and find out the level of waste management compliance. 

 
Q36 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

That the Area Manager look at who is responsible for (details supplied).  
 
Q37 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

That the Area Manager please look at the lighting situation in the Rossmore Avenue 
area, Ballyfermot, Dublin 10, to see if the area needs an additional public lighting 
lamp standard particularly outside no 84 to 86. 

 
Q38 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

To ask the Area Manager that the waste dumped at the Chapelizod Hill, Ballyfermot / 
Chapelizod, Dublin 10,  prior to Christmas,  be removed as a matter of urgency and 
that the area be patrolled for waste issues going forward. 

 
Q39 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

Can the Area Manager request the continuation of the footpath replacement along 
Gurteen Road toward the sports complex outside Mary Queen of Angels National 
School to include bollards to stop the practice of people parking along this busy 
Road. I am very grateful for the replacement of footpaths which happened in late 
September last. 

 
 

Page 11



Q40 Councillor Paul Hand 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).  

 
Q41 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied).  
 
Q42 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager to provide me with the following housing information. How 
many Dublin City Council housing units have been constructed in the South Central 
area since the year 2006 (directly constructed, excluding approved housing bodies 
and Part 5 provisions). How many have been provided from Part 5 of the Planning 
Act. How many have been refused that could have been provided from Part 5 of the 
Planning Act (including all instances where they can be refused/turned down). How 
many have been provided by Approved Housing Bodies. How many from any other 
sources, (eg. acquisitions, buy backs etc.)?  

 
Q43 Councillor Paul Hand 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)?  

 
Q44 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager if there are any plans to hire apprentices for the necessary 
front line work Dublin City Council carry out over the short/medium term. 

 
Q45 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Q46 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Q47 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)?  
 
Q48 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager for an update on the motion passed requesting welcome to 
Drimnagh signs and when these signs will be installed. 

 
Q49 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Can the Area Manager ask our Housing Maintenance Section to carry out the 
following repairs at (details supplied)? 
 

Q50 Councillor Pat Dunne 
Can the Area Manager refer to The Area Managers Report as given on the 14th 
December wherein it was stated that in relation to St. Teresa’s Gardens that both the 
boxing and football clubs could move into the new ground floor premises in 
December. As of 04/01/2017 the boxing club have not been given the keys. When 
can they now move in? 

 
Q51 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Can the Area Manager ask that our Community Development Section work with 
(details supplied)? 

 
Q52 Councillor Pat Dunne 

To ask the Area Manager to request that a commitment from our Parks Section going 
back to September 2015 to remove a tree from outside (details supplied) be 
immediately acted upon.  

Page 12



 
Q53 Councillor Michael Mullooly 

To ask the Area Manager if it is intended to monitor noise levels at sensitive locations 
and residential locations in the vicinity of Children's Hospital Site during construction. 

 
Q54 Councillor Michael Mullooly 

To ask the Area Manager if it is intended to monitor dust deposition and direction at 
sensitive locations and residential locations in the vicinity of the Children's Hospital 
Site during construction. 

 
Q55 Councillor Michael Mullooly 

To ask the Area Manager to outline in detail works and/or maintenance works and 
improvements  carried out in conjunction with Waterways Ireland or other bodies 
along the Grand Canal in 2016. 
 

Q56 Councillor Michael Mullooly 
To ask the Area Manager what steps are in train to deal with the persistent illegal 
dumping of bags of waste outside peoples houses in the Crumlin area. Is monitoring 
by mobile CCTV available?. Have surveys been done to ascertain what residents 
have a waste provider? Is it intended to name and shame people who engage in 
illegal dumping? 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



  
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 14



SthCntrlJan17AreaAgendaFinal

South Central Jan Area 

Agenda 18/01/17 (TAG Date: 

20/12/16)
Item Request Ref Road Post-

code

Topic Request Description Request 

by

TAG Result TAG Comments Sec Date Rec'd

1 Parking 

Prohibitions

20703 BULFIN GARDENS (SC-EA)D8 Double 

Yellow Lines

for one side of Bulfin Gardens resident Not 

Recommended

The introduction of DYLs is not recommended on Bulfin Gardens.

Under The Road Traffic (Traffic & Parking ) Regulations, Section 36 paragraph(2) k,

it is illegal to park “in a manner in which it will interfere with the normal flow of traffic or 

which obstructs or endangers other traffic;” and the Rules of the Road Part 4 state:

“When parking a vehicle you must ensure that:- It does not inconvenience, obstruct or 

endanger other traffic".

Parking issues when identified by Dublin Fire Brigade are referred to the Roads and 

Traffic Department.  Illegal parking can delay Fire Brigade response. In an emergency if 

access is required by the Fire Brigade and is blocked by parked vehicles the offending 

vehicles will be moved by whatever means is necessary by the responding Fire Brigade 

Units. A Pay and Display and Permit Parking Scheme to regulate parking may be 

considered if requested by residents and where it is first established that there is a 

demonstrable and clear desire for a Scheme (petition from 25% of residents). 

0 12/10/2015

2 Parking 

Prohibitions

20244 CURLEW ROAD 

(SC-EA)

D12 Double 

Yellow Lines

at the Health Centre. resident Not 

Recommended

Under The Road Traffic (Traffic & Parking ) Regulations, Section 36 paragraph(2) g;

“A vehicle shall not be parked in any place, position or manner that will result in the 

vehicle obstructing an entrance or an exit for vehicles to or from a premises, save with the 

consent of the occupier of such premises;”

It is not recommended to introduce parking restrictions where restrictions are already 

covered under the law, such as placing Double Yellow Lines across entrances/exits, as 

this would lead to a proliferation of same and additional expense due to maintenance etc.

Infringements of the Act should be reported to Dublin Street Parking Services 

Ph.6022500 for enforcement under the law. The issue should be referred to Dublin Street 

Parking Services tel no. 01 6022500.

The four access points to the Health Centre are approximately 7 metres wide. No vehicle 

should be parked within this 7 metre zone which allows ample room for entering/exiting 

the premises in a safe manner. Given that the surrounding roads are lowly trafficked 

residential areas the service request is not recommended. 

0 17/09/2015

3 Traffic Signs 28377 DOLPHIN ROAD 

(SC-EA)

D12 Children 

Crossing Sign

Additional signs near the mini-

roundabout.

resident Not 

Recommended

It is not recommended to erect a Children Crossing sign at Mourne Rd/Dolphin Rd at the 

mini roundabout as it does not meet the criteria for said signage. Repeater signs are not 

recommended on all roads within an estate. As per previous correspondence, “There was 

a sign erected across from the Park Amenity last year, but your request to have one 

erected at the mini roundabout is still with the Traffic Advisory Group”.  This sign is less 

than 140 metres away from the requested location and for that reason is not 

recommended.

In an urban environment with the large number of informational, directional and warning 

signs it is important to manage the number of signs erected to help maintain their 

effectiveness.

The excessive allocation (or proliferation) of such warning signs also undermines their 

effectiveness at better warranted locations.

0 08/12/2015

Page 1 of 4

P
age 15



SthCntrlJan17AreaAgendaFinal

4 Parking 

Prohibitions

31504 DRIMNAGH ROAD 

(SC-EA)

D12 Double 

Yellow Lines

on the laneway to the rear of 

Nos. 121-171. 

resident Not 

Recommended

Following recent site visits to this lane at the times suggested by the complainant, the 

circumstances observed did not warrant any road markings. There was on street parking 

observed which is encouraged by DCC in order to produce a natural traffic calming 

measure. The lane is certainly wide enough to facilitate the parking observed.

Double yellow lines along with Yellow Box Markings are provided as a measure to 

maintain a through flow of traffic and to prevent congestion and therefore are not 

recommended as the through flow was working to an adequate level.

The installation of a 3.5 Tonne weight limit sign is not recommended.

 It should be noted that in areas such as the road in question, it is not legally possible to 

restrict weights on vehicles if they are doing so for the purpose of access, be it to a 

commercial premise or other. The purpose of weight restrictions such as the 3.5 tonne 

limit in residential areas is to eliminate through traffic of heavy vehicles only. There are 

numerous established Auto repair/sales  businesses on this road and therefore delivery 

vehicles require access.

0 04/04/2016

5 Traffic 

Conditions

28788 DRUMFINN 

AVENUE (SC-EA)

D10 Yellow Box at the junction of Drumfinn 

Avenue and Drumfinn Road

cllr 

Jackson

Not 

Recommended

It is not recommended to install a yellow box at the Junction of Drumfinn Ave / Drumfinn 

Road Ballyfermot. After several site visits to the area difficulty was only observed for 

short isolated periods. For the installation of a yellow box it is DCC policy to recommend 

such an action where blocking should occur regularly i.e. on a daily basis and not only 

during peak periods.

0 20/01/2016

6 Parking 

Prohibitions

33563 EMMET ROAD 

(SC-EA)

D8 Double 

Yellow Lines 

(Rescind)

outside 124F The Starter 

Centre.

resident Not 

Recommended

Double Yellow Lines are installed to ensure the smooth flow of traffic & to prevent 

congestion. These lines allow for a 30 minute period to actively load and unload and are 

thought to be of assistance to businesses and road users alike in this instance. There are 

significant Pay & Display parking facilities to the west of the DYLs in question and further 

designated parking on Spa Road within 50 metres.

Therefore it is not recommended to rescind these double yellow lines.

0 02/09/2016

7 Parking 

Prohibitions

20626 FERNVALE DRIVE 

(SC-EA)

D12 Double 

Yellow Lines

on the road. cllr 

McHugh

Not 

Recommended

Under The Road Traffic (Traffic & Parking ) Regulations, Section 36 paragraph(2) g;

“A vehicle shall not be parked in any place, position or manner that will result in the 

vehicle obstructing an entrance or an exit for vehicles to or from a premises, save with the 

consent of the occupier of such premises;”

It is not recommended to introduce parking restrictions where restrictions are already 

covered under the law, such as placing Double Yellow Lines across entrances/exits, as 

this would lead to a proliferation of same and additional expense due to maintenance etc.

Infringements of the Act should be reported to Dublin Street Parking Services 

Ph.6022500 for enforcement under the law. The issue should be referred to Dublin Street 

Parking Services tel no. 01 6022500 as they occur.

0 21/10/2015

8 Parking 

Prohibitions

19832 INCHICORE 

ROAD (SC-EA)

D8 Double 

Yellow Lines

across lane entrance between 

parking bays outside No.7 to 

9 

 

resident Not 

Recommended

Request for DYLs not recommended.

Under The Road Traffic (Traffic & Parking ) Regulations, Section 36 paragraph(2) g;

“A vehicle shall not be parked in any place, position or manner that will result in the 

vehicle obstructing an entrance or an exit for vehicles to or from a premises, save with the 

consent of the occupier of such premises;”

It is not recommended to introduce parking restrictions where restrictions are already 

covered under the law, such as placing Double Yellow Lines across entrances/exits, as 

this would lead to a proliferation of same and additional expense due to maintenance etc.

Infringements of the Act should be reported to Dublin Street Parking Services 

Ph.6022500 for enforcement under the law. The issue should be referred to Dublin Street 

Parking Services tel no. 01 6022500 as incidents occur.

0

Page 2 of 4

P
age 16



SthCntrlJan17AreaAgendaFinal

9 Traffic 

Conditions

28790 ISLAND BRIDGE 

(SC-EA)

D8 Speed 

Ramps

a ramp or junction plateau. cllr Kelly Not 

Recommended

A 2 day traffic speed survey measuring speeds of 28,000 vehicles recorded an average 

speed of  42km/hr. A consultation with An Gardaí concluded that excessive speed was 

not a contributing factor in any recent reported accidents. No serious or fatal accidents 

have occurred on this road on recent record (back to 2014) and the comments of the 

Gardai relate to minor accidents reported this year. 

Speed Ramps are not effective at reducing speeds below 50km/h.

As per the Design Manual for Urban Roads & Streets it is the policy of Dublin city Council 

not to construct speed ramps on main arterial roads, including circuitous routes such as 

the South Circular Road.

Nonetheless, a recommendation is made to include this location in Islandbridge for 

consideration in next year’s works programme for the erection of flashing speed sign 

(VMS sign) facing northbound motorists to support the adherence to traffic law along this 

section of carriageway.

Speed Radar signs have since been installed at this location.

0 20/01/2016

10 Parking 

Prohibitions

20072 JAMES'S WALK 

(SC-EA)

D8 Double 

Yellow Lines 

(Extend)

at Fatima Luas stop resident Not 

Recommended

Regarding the gap between the DYLs at Fatima Luas Stop, this is to provide on street 

parking which acts as a natural traffic calming measure. On several site visits this 

appears to work. The customer’s complaints that it causes “OBSTRUCTION” were not 

witnessed, which is not to say it never happens.

It is not recommended to alter this currently however as it actively slows motorists down 

and calms traffic.

The customer’s complaint regarding “The yellow lines also stop short near the end of the

narrow section of road INSTEAD OF CONTINUING TO WHERE THE ROAD WIDENS” 

can be explained as follows. Where the road widens, there is less need for the DYLs as 

the flow of traffic is not restricted here as the road is deemed sufficiently wide. Hence the 

omission of the DYLs. No alteration is recommended here.

0 10/09/2015

11 Parking 

Prohibitions

34949 JAMES'S WALK 

(SC-EA)

D8 Double 

Yellow Lines

on both sides of the yellow 

box at the School Warden 

crossing site.

dcc road 

safety

Recommended Install 4 metres of DYLs on the North side of Grand Canal Bank / James’s Walk from a 

point 2 metres east of LS 19 to a point 6 metres east of LS 19.

Install 4 metres of DYLs on the South side of James’s Walk from a point 3.5 metres east 

of the common boundary of No.1 & 2 Grand Canal Bank /  James’s Walk to a point 

0.5metres west of the common boundary of No.1 & 2 Grand Canal Bank /  James’s Walk.

0 09/11/2016

12 Parking 

Prohibitions

20047 KNOCKNAREA 

ROAD (SC-EA)

D8 Double 

Yellow Lines

along side of infant & primary 

schools

resident Not 

Recommended

Service request not recommended.

It is not recommended to install DYLs to discourage parking on the footpath as Under The 

Road Traffic (Traffic & Parking) Regulations, Section 36 paragraph (2)

(i) It is illegal to park on a footway, a grass margin or a median strip.

0 09/09/2015

13 Parking 

Prohibitions

35334 OLD COUNTY 

GLEN (SC-EA)

D12 Double 

Yellow Lines

at the entrance to the Estate. cllr 

McHugh

Not 

Recommended

Double yellow lines are provided as a measure to maintain a through flow of traffic and to 

prevent congestion. They operate on a 24 hour basis and are non-discriminatory, i.e. the 

residents will also not be allowed to park there.

Although commuter parking may be an inconvenience to local residents it does not 

constitute the need for parking restrictions. Should the residents so wish they could apply 

toparkingenforcement@dublincity.ie to apply for Pay and Display parking to be 

introduced. This request does not meet the criteria for the provision of double yellow lines 

and is therefore not recommended.

Under The Road Traffic (Traffic & Parking) Regulations, Section 36 paragraph (2) it is 

illegal to park under the following conditions:

( c ) within 5 metres of a road junction;

( i ) on a footway, a grass margin or a median strip;

( k ) in a manner in which it will interfere with the normal flow of traffic or which obstructs 

or endangers other traffic;

Infringements of the Act should be reported to Dublin Street Parking Services 

Ph.6022500 for enforcement under the law.

0 05/12/2016

Page 3 of 4

P
age 17



SthCntrlJan17AreaAgendaFinal

14 Parking 

Prohibitions

28027 RAFTER'S 

AVENUE (SC-EA)

D12 Double 

Yellow Lines

at the entrance of the road. resident Pending It is not recommended to introduce parking restrictions where restrictions are already 

covered under the law, such as placing Double Yellow Lines to prevent parking on a 

footpath, or extending DYL’s around a bend.

Under The Road Traffic (Traffic & Parking) Regulations, Section 36 paragraph (2)

(i) It is illegal to park on a footway, a grass margin or a median strip.

(c) Within 5 meters of a road junction.

Infringements of the Act should be reported to Dublin Street Parking Services 

Ph.6022500 for enforcement under the law. 

3 23/11/2015

15 Parking 

Prohibitions

20073 REUBEN WALK 

(SC-EA)

D8 Double 

Yellow Lines 

(Extend)

along Reuben Walk/Way onto 

other side of the road 

resident Not 

Recommended

Regarding the gap between the DYLs at Fatima Luas Stop, this is to provide on street 

parking which acts as a natural traffic calming measure. On several site visits this 

appears to work. The customer’s complaints that it causes “OBSTRUCTION” were not 

witnessed, which is not to say it never happens.

It is not recommended to alter this currently however as it actively slows motorists down 

and calms traffic.

The customer’s complaint regarding “The yellow lines also stop short near the end of the

narrow section of road INSTEAD OF CONTINUING TO WHERE THE ROAD WIDENS” 

can be explained as follows. Where the road widens, there is less need for the DYLs as 

the flow of traffic is not restricted here as the road is deemed sufficiently wide. Hence the 

omission of the DYLs. No alteration is recommended here. 

0 10/09/2015

16 Parking 

Prohibitions

20674 RIALTO STREET 

(SC-EA)

D8 Double 

Yellow Lines

at the entrance to the 

laneway.

resident Not 

Recommended

Further to the recommendation to install DYLs opposite Numbers 97 – 108 Rialto 

Buildings (Rialto Cottages), it is not recommended to install them at the entrances of the 

lane in question.

Under The Road Traffic (Traffic & Parking ) Regulations, Section 36 paragraph(2) g;

“A vehicle shall not be parked in any place, position or manner that will result in the 

vehicle obstructing an entrance or an exit for vehicles to or from a premises, save with the 

consent of the occupier of such premises;”

It is not recommended to introduce parking restrictions where restrictions are already 

covered under the law, such as placing Double Yellow Lines across entrances/exits, as 

this would lead to a proliferation of same and additional expense due to maintenance etc.

Infringements of the Act should be reported to Dublin Street Parking Services 

Ph.6022500 for enforcement under the law. The issue should be referred to Dublin Street 

Parking Services tel no. 01 6022500.

0 09/10/2015

17 Parking 

Prohibitions

29160 ROTHE ABBEY 

(SC-EA)

D8 Double 

Yellow Lines

or a yellow box in the turning 

area outside No. 76 

resident Not 

Recommended

The carriageway is 6m wide approaching the property of 76 Rothe Abbey, which is ample 

space to allow one sided parking without interfering with traffic flow or turning 

movements. Although commuter parking may be an inconvenience to local residents it 

does not constitute the need for unnecessary parking restrictions. Should the residents so 

wish they could apply toparkingenforcement@dublincity.ie to apply for Pay and Display 

parking to be introduced.

Service request not recommended.

0 26/01/2016

18 Traffic Signs 27629 THOMAS DAVIS 

STREET WEST 

(SC-EA)

D8 Children 

Crossing Sign

outside Nos. 12/13 and 4/5. cllr Hand Not 

Recommended

It is not recommended to install Children Crossing signs on Thomas Davis Street West as 

the road is not in direct contact with a main traffic route. Thomas Davis Street West is 

also a Cul de Sac and therefore does not meet the criteria for the erection of such signs, 

Children Crossing signs should not be recommended for main roads, traffic calmed roads 

or cul de sacs.

Approaching the bend in question the carriageway widths excluding the delineated 

parking bays are between 3 & 3.5metres which puts the onus on the motorist to behave in 

a manner suitable to the obvious surrounding conditions

0 18/11/2015

19 Admin 35578 WINDMILL ROAD 

(SC-EA)

D12 Buildout at the junction of Windmill 

Road and Crumlin Road.

dcc traffic 

mgt

Recommended Buildout recommended at the junction of Windmill Road and Crumlin Road. For inclusion 

on a future years Works Programme subject to availability of funding.

0 15/12/2016

Page 4 of 4

P
age 18



 

Traffic Service Requests,  

Status Report at 15th December, 2016 

South Central Area Committee Meeting, Date: 18th January, 2017. 
                            Please note that to ensure continued efficient operation of the Sharepoint database system it has become necessary to archive  
                                         all completed items up to and including 31/12/15. Therefore these items are not reflected in the Status Report. 

  Total TAG Requests received (from 1st Jan 2016  to 15th Dec 2016) 248 

Total TAG Requests Completed (from 1st Jan 2016 to 15th Dec 2016) 100 

  
No. of TAG Requests received since previous report (November 2016) 21 

Total TAG Requests currently open on Sharepoint 279 

Breakdown of TAG Requests currently open on Sharepoint 
 Stage 1 10 

Stage 2 157 
Stage 3 1 

Stage 4 78 

Stage 5 33 
 
Non-TAG Service Request Statistics 

 Total non-TAG Requests received since 2016 737 

           …. of which Requests completed 536 
Requests currently open on Sharepoint received since 01/01/2013 281 

 

 

 

P
age 19



 

 

  
 

 

Item SR Road/Street/Ave. 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received 

SR 
Status 

1 34827 DRIMNAGH ROAD  D12 Pedestrian Crossing at the new Costa/Centra/Boots.  07/11/2016 
Stage 
1 

2 35183 MALPAS STREET  D8 
Right Turn Filter 
Light from Malpas Street onto Clanbrassil Street Lower 18/11/2016 

Stage 
1 

3 35198 BASIN STREET UPPER  D8 
Disabled Parking 
Bay (General) outside the Educate Together National School 22/11/2016 

Stage 
1 

4 35250 LA TOUCHE ROAD  D10 Parking Prohibition 
around LUAS station as people parking all day at 
shops to get on LUAS 24/11/2016 

Stage 
1 

5 35290 LEIGHLIN ROAD  D12 
Speed Ramps 
(Rescind) from outside 145, due to car being damaged. 29/11/2016 

Stage 
1 

6 35307 O'DONOGHUE STREET  D8 Yellow Box at junction with Ring Street 28/11/2016 
Stage 
1 

7 35320 CURLEW ROAD  D12 Double Yellow Lines 
at entrance/exit of Health Centre 
  29/11/2016 

Stage 
1 

8 35352 KIMMAGE ROAD LWR  D6W Left Turn Filter Light left turn onto Ravensdale Park 29/11/2016 
Stage 
1 

9 35529 KYLEMORE ROAD  D10 Yield Sign on the on ramp from Kylemore Road 13/12/2016 
Stage 
1 

10 35623 WEAVERS SQUARE  D8 Yellow Box at the entrance to The Mill Apartments 15/12/2016 
Stage 
1 

11 7126 PARNELL ROAD  D12 Pedestrian Crossing On all sides of the junction.  10/05/2013 
Stage 
2 

P
age 20



Item SR Road/Street/Ave. 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received 

SR 
Status 

12 7464 DOLPHIN ROAD  D12 Pedestrian Crossing 
At the junction of Herberton Road and Dolphin 
Rd.                28/05/2013 

Stage 
2 

13 9452 JAMES'S STREET  D8 Pedestrian Crossing 
Wrap around crossing for junction with Bow Lane 
West, Steeven's Lane. 12/11/2013 

Stage 
2 

14 9881 STEEVEN'S LANE  D8 Pedestrian Crossing At the junction with St. Patrick’s Hospital. 09/12/2013 
Stage 
2 

15 9960 DOLPHIN ROAD  D8 Pedestrian Crossing 
At the junction of Herberton Road and Dolphin 
Road.  11/12/2013 

Stage 
2 

16 12252 KIMMAGE ROAD WEST  D12 Pedestrian Phase 
On the traffic lights at the junction of Shelton 
Drive. 12/05/2014 

Stage 
2 

17 12388 DOLPHIN ROAD  D12 Pedestrian Crossing At the junction of Herberton Road. 12/05/2014 
Stage 
2 

18 12560 WALKINSTOWN ROAD  D12 Cycle Track On Walkinstown Road. 23/05/2014 
Stage 
2 

19 12589 NAAS ROAD  D12 Pedestrian Crossing 
on the east side of the junction of Walkinstown 
Avenue  26/05/2014 

Stage 
2 

20 13835 THOMAS STREET  D8 Loading Bay 
Reconsideration of previous request for Loading 
Bay at 129/128 Thomas St. 29/08/2014 

Stage 
2 

21 13907 FRANCIS STREET  D8 Cycle Track 

Two-way cycle lane or lanes on both sides of the 
street 
  27/08/2014 

Stage 
2 

22 15760 DOLPHIN ROAD  D12 Pedestrian Crossing at the junction of Herberton Road. 10/12/2014 
Stage 
2 

23 15815 HERBERTON ROAD  D8 Pedestrian Crossing 
At the junction of Dolphin Road, to cross the 
bridge. 02/12/2014 

Stage 
2 

24 15816 DOLPHIN ROAD  D12 Pedestrian Crossing 
at the junction of Dolphin’s Barn and Parnell 
Road, to cross the bridge. 02/12/2014 

Stage 
2 

25 15817 DONORE AVE.  D8 Pedestrian Crossing 
at the junction of Parnell Road, to cross the 
bridge. 02/12/2014 

Stage 
2 

26 16301 BULFIN ROAD  D8 Pedestrian Crossing at the junction of South Circular Road.  22/01/2015 Stage 

P
age 21



Item SR Road/Street/Ave. 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received 

SR 
Status 

2 

27 16389 HERBERTON ROAD  D12 Pedestrian Crossing at the junction of Dolphin Road.  02/02/2015 
Stage 
2 

28 16930 MARTIN'S ROW  D20 Pedestrian Crossing 
for pedestrian entrance to St. Patrick's National 
School (Appeal of SR 15055). 24/02/2015 

Stage 
2 

29 17817 KIMMAGE ROAD WEST  D12 Pedestrian Crossing 
at the junction of Lorcan O'Toole Park and 
Shelton Grove. 23/04/2015 

Stage 
2 

30 17975 SUNDRIVE ROAD  D12 Yellow Box (Extend) outside Supervalu. 01/05/2015 
Stage 
2 

31 17976 SUNDRIVE ROAD  D12 Pedestrian Crossing Between Supervalu and the bus stop.  01/05/2015 
Stage 
2 

32 18446 SEAN HEUSTON BRIDGE  D8 Pedestrian Crossing 
Pedestrian Crossing or Zebra Crossing at the 
south end of Sean Heuston Bridge.  27/06/2015 

Stage 
2 

33 18891 WEAVERS SQUARE  D8 
Pay & Display & 
Permit Parking on the road. 25/06/2015 

Stage 
2 

34 18938 HIGH STREET  D8 Yellow Box at junction of Bridge Street inbound 29/06/2015 
Stage 
2 

35 18987 CAPTAINS ROAD  D12 Pedestrian Crossing 
pedestrian lights and slow down signs for 
junction of Captains Road / Stannaway Rd 02/07/2015 

Stage 
2 

36 19139 DOLPHIN ROAD  D12 Pedestrian Crossing at the junction of Herberton Road.  06/07/2015 
Stage 
2 

37 19178 TURVEY AVE.  D8 
Pay & Display & 
Permit Parking on the road. 15/07/2015 

Stage 
2 

38 19205 KIMMAGE ROAD LWR  D6W Cycle Track 
Mandatory Cycle Lane inbound and outbound 
from 07.00 to 22.00 hours. 10/07/2015 

Stage 
2 

39 19206 CLANBRASSIL STREET LWR        D8 Cycle Track 

Mandatory Cycle Lane inbound and outbound 
from 07.00 to 22.00 hours.  
  10/07/2015 

Stage 
2 

40 19389 SLIEVEBLOOM PARK  D12 No U Turn at Slievebloom Park.  24/07/2015 Stage 

P
age 22



Item SR Road/Street/Ave. 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received 

SR 
Status 

2 

41 19403 MALPAS STREET  D8 Yellow Box outside Firstop 28/07/2015 
Stage 
2 

42 19687 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD  D8 Pedestrian Crossing 
between Bulfin road and Brookfield Road 
  17/08/2015 

Stage 
2 

43 19688 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD  D8 Traffic Calming between Bulfin road and Brookfield Road 17/08/2015 
Stage 
2 

44 19727 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD  D8 Speed Ramps Opposite Islandbridge flats. 19/08/2015 
Stage 
2 

45 19820 PARNELL ROAD  D12 Pedestrian Crossing at junction with Clogher Road 25/08/2015 
Stage 
2 

46 19842 BUNTING ROAD  D11 Yellow Box outside AW Carpets shop (No.148) 26/08/2015 
Stage 
2 

47 19857 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD  D8 Yellow Box 
Southbound at intersection with Saint Johns Road 
West. 27/08/2015 

Stage 
2 

48 20006 DRUMFINN ROAD  D10 Yellow Box  Request for a bus parking bay outside No.27  07/09/2015 
Stage 
2 

49 20032 MOURNE ROAD  D12 Pedestrian Crossing on the road. 08/09/2015 
Stage 
2 

50 20202 CHERRY ORCHARD AVE.  D10 Traffic Calming 
in the general Cherry Orchard Area. (A number of 
roads include the Cherry Orchard area). 16/09/2015 

Stage 
2 

51 20208 STANNAWAY ROAD  D12 Pedestrian Crossing at the junction of Stannaway and Captains Road. 16/07/2015 
Stage 
2 

52 20316 PATRICK STREET  D8 Stop Sign To replace the YIELD sign at above junction 22/09/2015 
Stage 
2 

53 20327 CHERRY ORCHARD AVE.  D10 
Bus Cage Marking 
(Rescind) 

to move bus stop into middle of double yellow 
lines and bus cage on both sides of road 
  21/09/2015 

Stage 
2 

54 20464 DOLPHINS BARN  D8 Double Yellow Lines 
at 17 terminus stops 1367 and 1380 on both sides 
of Bus Bays. 29/09/2015 

Stage 
2 

P
age 23



Item SR Road/Street/Ave. 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received 

SR 
Status 

55 20551 ISLAND STREET  D8 

Pay & Display & 
Permit Parking 
(Rescind) 

Double Yellow Lines to replace Pay & Display 
outside the emergency fire access to the Viking 
Harbour apartment complex 02/10/2015 

Stage 
2 

56 20619 RIALTO COTTAGES-SECOND AVE.  D8 Traffic Calming Avenue Nos. 12-29, just off James's Walk. 07/10/2015 
Stage 
2 

57 20623 KIMMAGE ROAD WEST  D6W Pedestrian Crossing 
on Kimmage Cross Roads at junction of Kimmage 
Road West and Terenure Road. 21/10/2015 

Stage 
2 

58 20625 HERBERTON ROAD  D8 Traffic Calming 
on the road between Rialto roundabout and 
Herberton Bridge. 21/10/2015 

Stage 
2 

59 20725 GRANGE ROAD  D6 Bus Cage Marking at stop no 1328. 12/10/2015 
Stage 
2 

60 20726 GRANGE ROAD  D6 Double Yellow Lines at bus stop 1328 12/10/2015 
Stage 
2 

61 20749 BLARNEY PARK  D12 Speed Ramps 
 at dangerous bend  outside No's 75 to 82 . 
  13/10/2015 

Stage 
2 

62 20873 LISLE ROAD  D12 Yield Sign (Rescind) Replace YIELD sign with a STOP sign. 19/10/2015 
Stage 
2 

63 20927 MOLYNEUX YARD  D8 Parking Prohibition along the football pitch side of the road.  20/10/2015 
Stage 
2 

64 20953 ERRIGAL ROAD  D12 Pedestrian Crossing 
at the junction with Drimnagh road, outside the 
Ronald McDonald House  21/10/2015 

Stage 
2 

65 20961 SAINT JOHN'S ROAD WEST  D8 Pedestrian Crossing 

Pedestrian Crossing or Zebra Crossing, crossing 
between Heuston Station and the Heuston Luas 
Bridge. 21/10/2015 

Stage 
2 

66 21016 INCHICORE TERRACE SOUTH  D8 Traffic Calming on the road. 21/10/2015 
Stage 
2 

67 21017 INCHICORE SQUARE SOUTH  D8 3 Tonne Limit on the road. 21/10/2015 
Stage 
2 

68 21026 INCHICORE TERRACE SOUTH  D8 3.5 Tonne Limit on the road.  08/09/2015 
Stage 
2 

P
age 24



Item SR Road/Street/Ave. 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received 

SR 
Status 

69 21048 GRANITE TERRACE  D8 Traffic Calming on the road.  08/09/2015 
Stage 
2 

70 21078 KIMMAGE ROAD WEST  D6W Pedestrian Crossing at slip road onto Kimmage Road West 28/10/2015 
Stage 
2 

71 21087 SAINT JOHN'S ROAD WEST  D8 Pedestrian Crossing 
Crossing between Hueston Station and the 
Heuston Luas Bridge.  25/10/2015 

Stage 
2 

72 21102 KEEPER ROAD  D12 Double Yellow Lines 
on the laneway from Keeper Road up to the 
entrance to Drimnagh Boxing Club.  27/10/2015 

Stage 
2 

73 21216 DRUMFINN ROAD  D10 
School Warden 
Crossing Box 

at School Warden crossing site for Mary Queen of 
Angels Primary School. 30/10/2015 

Stage 
2 

74 27646 SUIR ROAD  D8 Pedestrian Crossing 
at the junction of South Circular Road and Bulfin 
Road.  02/11/2015 

Stage 
2 

75 27649 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD  D8 Yellow Box outside Memorial Court.  02/11/2015 
Stage 
2 

76 27661 CLOVERHILL ROAD  D10 Pedestrian Crossing 
at the junction of Cloverhill Road and Le Fanu 
Drive. 18/11/2015 

Stage 
2 

77 27662 CLOVERHILL ROAD  D10 Traffic Lights 
at the junction of Cloverhill Road and Le Fanu 
Drive. 18/11/2015 

Stage 
2 

78 27663 SAINT JOHN'S ROAD WEST  D8 Pedestrian Crossing between Heuston Station and the LUAS bridge. 18/11/2015 
Stage 
2 

79 27664 CHERRY ORCHARD AVE.  D10 Pedestrian Crossing 
at Tommy's Shop on the corner of Croftwood 
Park. 18/11/2015 

Stage 
2 

80 27667 CHERRY ORCHARD AVE.  D10 Pedestrian Crossing 
at junction of Blackditch Rd and Cherry Orchard 
Ave. 18/11/2015 

Stage 
2 

81 27675 CLIFDEN DRIVE  D10 Pedestrian Barrier 
at the junction of Clifden Road, Clifden 
Drive, Cherry Orchard Drive. 18/11/2015 

Stage 
2 

82 27676 CLIFDEN ROAD  D10 Traffic Calming 
at the junction of Clifden Road and Blackditch 
Road. 18/11/2015 

Stage 
2 

83 27776 LE FANU ROAD  D10 Pedestrian Crossing 
at the junction of Kylemore Road at Kylemore 
College. 10/11/2015 

Stage 
2 

P
age 25



Item SR Road/Street/Ave. 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received 

SR 
Status 

84 27824 PARK WEST AVE.  D12 Traffic Island 
at the roundabout, towards the Nangor Road, on 
the hotel side of the road. 12/11/2015 

Stage 
2 

85 27961 SAINT JOHN'S ROAD WEST  D8 Bus Cage Marking 
Extension of bus cage marking by 15 metres 
westwards.  20/11/2015 

Stage 
2 

86 27993 CREMONA ROAD  D10 Speed Ramps on the road.  19/11/2015 
Stage 
2 

87 28044 ROBINSON'S COURT  D7 Pedestrian Crossing 
on Pimlico at the junction with Ardee Street and 
the Coombe 23/11/2015 

Stage 
2 

88 28134 
RIALTO COTTAGES-SECOND 
AVE.  D8 Traffic Calming Avenue Nos. 12-29, just off James's Walk. 29/10/2015 

Stage 
2 

89 28137 SAINT JOHN'S ROAD WEST  D8 Electric Car Bay 
The 1st & 2nd space on the outbound lane 
leaving the city. 17/11/2015 

Stage 
2 

90 28279 CHERRY ORCHARD AVE.  D10 Pedestrian Crossing outside St Ultan's School. 09/12/2015 
Stage 
2 

91 28287 KYLEMORE ROAD  D12 Yellow Box at the junction of Bluebell Avenue.  02/12/2015 
Stage 
2 

92 28401 RAVENSDALE PARK  D12 Pedestrian Crossing at the junction of Kimmage Road Lower.  07/12/2015 
Stage 
2 

93 28411 SAINT JOHN'S STREET  D8 

Disabled Parking 
Bay (Rescind 
Residential) outside No.  14.  09/12/2015 

Stage 
2 

94 28412 SAINT JOHN'S ROAD WEST  D8 Pedestrian Crossing between Heuston Station and the Luas Bridge.  07/12/2015 
Stage 
2 

95 28460 KYLEMORE ROAD  D12 Yellow Box at the junction of Bluebell Avenue. 09/12/2015 
Stage 
2 

96 28679 PIMLICO  D8 Pedestrian Crossing 
Crossing from Pimlico Newsagents to The 
Coombe.  04/01/2016 

Stage 
2 

97 28792 DOLPHIN ROAD  D8 Double Yellow Lines at both ends of the green and along canal. 20/01/2016 
Stage 
2 

98 28871 CLOGHER ROAD  D12 Parking Prohibition Restrict parking on Clogher Rd, o/s St. Kevin's 15/01/2016 Stage 

P
age 26



Item SR Road/Street/Ave. 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received 

SR 
Status 

College. 2 

99 28983 THE COOMBE  D8 Yellow Box at the entrance to Swift Hall. 15/01/2016 
Stage 
2 

100 29031 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD  D8 
No Right Turn 
(Rescind) 

from SCR onto Clanbrassil St Upper.  
  18/01/2016 

Stage 
2 

101 29073 SAINT JOHN'S ROAD WEST  D8 Bus Lane Request to widen bus lane by 0.5 metres 20/01/2016 
Stage 
2 

102 29206 KIMMAGE ROAD LWR  D12 Pedestrian Crossing at the junction of Ravensdale Park.  01/02/2016 
Stage 
2 

103 29207 OLD NAAS ROAD  D12 Double Yellow Lines 
at the corners of the gates at the entrance to 
Bluebell Business Park. 01/02/2016 

Stage 
2 

104 29249 NEAGH ROAD  D6 
Intelligent Traffic 
Signals adjacent to Neagh Road Park playground. 02/02/2016 

Stage 
2 

105 29263 JOHN MCCORMACK AVE.  D12 Speed Ramps Request speed ramps on above roads. 03/02/2016 
Stage 
2 

106 29296 CLOGHER ROAD  D12 Road Markings at entrance and exit of St. Kevins College  29/01/2016 
Stage 
2 

107 29315 CRUMLIN ROAD  D12 Yellow Box at the junction with Rafters Rd 17/02/2016 
Stage 
2 

108 29337 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD  D8 Speed Ramps 
on the laneway at entrance to Bellevue 
Apartments 03/02/2016 

Stage 
2 

109 29412 DONORE AVE.  D12 Pedestrian Crossing 
at Sally’s Bridge at the junction of Donore 
Avenue, Parnell Road, Clogher Road.  11/01/2016 

Stage 
2 

110 29455 GURTEEN PARK  D10 Speed Ramps on the road 08/02/2016 
Stage 
2 

111 29674 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD  D8 3.5 Tonne Limit to lane at entrance to Bellevue Apartments 02/02/2016 
Stage 
2 

112 29742 KILWORTH ROAD  D12 Traffic Calming 

additional Traffic Calming Measures / 
Roundabout at junction of Kilworth Road and 
Cooley Road.  17/02/2016 

Stage 
2 

P
age 27



Item SR Road/Street/Ave. 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received 

SR 
Status 

113 29748 KYLEMORE ROAD  D12 Pedestrian Crossing at the junction of Long Mile Road.  17/02/2016 
Stage 
2 

114 29754 COLEPARK DRIVE  D10 Stop Sign 
...or stop line for T junction of Colepark Drive with 
Ballyfermot Road 15/02/2016 

Stage 
2 

115 29755 USHER'S QUAY  D2 Stop Sign ... or stop line outside petrol station  15/02/2016 
Stage 
2 

116 30103 ALMEIDA AVE.  D8 Speed Ramps 
at each end of the laneway behind Lorne 
Terrace/Almeida Avenue 16/03/2016 

Stage 
2 

117 30105 ORANMORE ROAD  D10 Traffic Calming at the junction with Blackditch Road 16/03/2016 
Stage 
2 

118 30175 SPERRIN ROAD  D12 School Ahead Sign Near Our Lady of Good Counsel School 16/03/2016 
Stage 
2 

119 30229 KYLEMORE ROAD  D10 Yellow Box 
at the entry/exits to the service roads in 
Ballyfermot see map  16/03/2016 

Stage 
2 

120 30261 INNISMORE  D12 Traffic Calming in the estate, particularly at sharp bend. 11/03/2016 
Stage 
2 

121 30394 MARTIN'S ROW  D20 Traffic Calming on Knockmaroon Hill Chapelizod D20 21/03/2016 
Stage 
2 

122 30561 HUBAND ROAD  D12 

Disabled Parking 
Bay (Rescind 
Residential) Outside No. 29. 04/04/2016 

Stage 
2 

123 30563 DRIMNAGH ROAD  D12 3.5 Tonne Limit 
on the laneway to the rear of Nos. 121-171, 
Drimnagh Road 04/04/2016 

Stage 
2 

124 30593 KYLEMORE ROAD  D12 Pedestrian Crossing at the junction of Naas Road.  17/02/2016 
Stage 
2 

125 30819 BALLYFERMOT ROAD  D10 Bus Stop Approvals 

Bus stop to be reinstated outside Cherry Orchard 
Hospital 
  
  15/04/2016 

Stage 
2 

126 30820 BIGGER ROAD  D12 Stop Sign to replace yield signs  08/04/2016 Stage 

P
age 28



Item SR Road/Street/Ave. 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received 

SR 
Status 

2 

127 31136 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD  D8 No Left Turn 
from South Circular Road onto Church Avenue 
South, during morning peak.  29/04/2016 

Stage 
2 

128 31167 HANBURY LANE  D2 
Disabled Parking 
Bay (General) 

in the vicinity of Thomas Court Primary Care 
Centre.  05/05/2016 

Stage 
2 

129 31232 TERENURE ROAD NORTH  D6W Traffic Calming above road no.15-17 10/05/2016 
Stage 
2 

130 31261 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD  D8 Bus Stop Marking 
at Dublin Bus Stop No. 1385 opposite Griffith 
College. 06/05/2016 

Stage 
2 

131 31262 KEEPER ROAD  D12 Bus Stop Marking at Dublin Bus Stop No. 1434. 06/05/2016 
Stage 
2 

132 31399 ISLAND STREET  D8 Yellow Box  at the exit of warehouse 14 island street 18/05/2016 
Stage 
2 

133 31551 CON COLBERT ROAD  D8 School Ahead Sign 

School Ahead or School Crossing sign requested 
at junction for Ballyfermot 
  25/05/2016 

Stage 
2 

134 31735 WALKINSTOWN GREEN  D15 Double Yellow Lines at the shops near the park. roundabout 02/06/2016 
Stage 
2 

135 31978 PIMLICO  D8 3 Tonne Limit on the street 14/06/2016 
Stage 
2 

136 32335 SAINT JOHN'S STREET  D8 

Disabled Parking 
Bay (Rescind 
Residential) Outside number 14 24/06/2016 

Stage 
2 

137 32929 SAINT JOHN'S ROAD WEST  D8 Pedestrian Crossing 
Additional pedestrian crossings for the Heuston 
Station area. 22/07/2016 

Stage 
2 

138 32952 TYRCONNELL ROAD  D8 Single Yellow Line 

request for single/double yellow lines along the 
non-recessed areas outside Tesco Express and 
along that stretch of road. 25/07/2016 

Stage 
2 

P
age 29



Item SR Road/Street/Ave. 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received 

SR 
Status 

139 33056 DONORE ROAD  D8 

Disabled Parking 
Bay (Rescind 
Residential) outside No. 13. 02/08/2016 

Stage 
2 

140 33352 ROTHE ABBEY  D8 Traffic Calming 
Caution Children sign or other measures for 
traffic calming on above road 22/08/2016 

Stage 
2 

141 33355 PARNELL ROAD  D12 Pedestrian Crossing 
at the junction of Clogher Road and Donore 
Avenue.  29/07/2016 

Stage 
2 

142 33356 SLIEVENAMON ROAD  D12 Pedestrian Crossing 
at the junction of Dolphin Road and Grand Canal 
View.  29/07/2016 

Stage 
2 

143 33372 SLIEVENAMON ROAD  D12 Double Yellow Lines 

1) On Slievenamon Rd from the roundabout 
at Galtymore Rd/Slievenamon Rd to the first set 
of ramps northbound towards the Grand Canal; 
and 
2) on Slievenamon Rd on the approach 
northbound to the junction of Slievenamon Rd 
/Davitt Rd. 24/08/2016 

Stage 
2 

144 33374 KILDARE ROAD  D12 Traffic Lights at the junction of Clonard Road.  24/08/2016 
Stage 
2 

145 33508 GURTEEN AVE.  D10 Traffic Calming request for additional traffic calming measures.  30/08/2016 
Stage 
2 

146 33521 TURVEY AVE.  D8 
Double Yellow Lines 
(Extend) 

to the first parking space on the left hand side 
entering the road.  19/08/2016 

Stage 
2 

147 33533 BASIN STREET UPPER  D8 Double Yellow Lines 
opposite the entrance to the Haven Adult 
Education Centre. 31/08/2016 

Stage 
2 

148 33624 CASHEL AVE.  D12 
Disabled Parking 
Bay (Residential) outside No. 112. 07/09/2016 

Stage 
2 

149 33649 GURTEEN AVE.  D10 Traffic Calming Extra traffic calming measures 07/09/2016 
Stage 
2 

150 33667 CLOGHER ROAD  D12 Pedestrian Crossing 
at the junction of Parnell Road and Donore 
Avenue.  08/09/2016 

Stage 
2 

P
age 30



Item SR Road/Street/Ave. 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received 

SR 
Status 

151 33785 TYRCONNELL ROAD  D8 Double Yellow Lines 

outside Tesco Express and along the outside of 
the indented parking areas on that side of the 
road. 13/10/2016 

Stage 
2 

152 33789 WALLACE ROAD  D12 Stop Sign 
STOP signs for Wallace Rd, Bigger Rd, 
JMcCormack Ave. 12/09/2016 

Stage 
2 

153 33972 STANNAWAY DRIVE  D12 
Disabled Parking 
Bay (General) 

2 bays opposite entrance gates to Enable Ireland 
facility. 22/09/2016 

Stage 
2 

154 34066 WOODFIELD PLACE  D10 
Disabled Parking 
Bay (Residential) outside No. 9.  29/09/2016 

Stage 
2 

155 34080 GURTEEN AVE.  D10 Speed Ramps extra ramps on the road 21/09/2016 
Stage 
2 

156 34082 GURTEEN AVE.  D10 Speed Ramps extra ramp on the road 21/09/2016 
Stage 
2 

157 34083 WINDMILL ROAD  D12 Pedestrian Crossing or double yellow lines outside the Swimming Pool 21/09/2016 
Stage 
2 

158 34215 WALKINSTOWN AVE.  D10 Yellow Box entrance to "denhu complex"  29/09/2016 
Stage 
2 

159 34266 KIMMAGE ROAD LWR  D12 
Right Turn Filter 
Light from Kimmage Road Lower onto Ravensdale Park.  04/10/2016 

Stage 
2 

160 34272 GURTEEN AVE.  D10 
Children Crossing 
Sign on the road.  30/08/2016 

Stage 
2 

161 34408 CRUMLIN ROAD  D12 Stop Sign 
Request for stop sign at entrance to car park in 
crumlin village beside Llyods pharmacy. 11/10/2016 

Stage 
2 

162 34641 KILDARE ROAD  D12 
Disabled Parking 
Bay (Residential) outside No. 32. 25/10/2016 

Stage 
2 

163 34815 KILWORTH ROAD  D12 Roundabout at junction with Cooley Rd 02/11/2016 
Stage 
2 

164 34826 LE FANU ROAD  D10 Pedestrian Crossing 
at the junction of Kylemore Road at Kylemore 
College. 07/11/2016 

Stage 
2 

P
age 31



Item SR Road/Street/Ave. 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received 

SR 
Status 

165 35014 KEEPER ROAD  D12 
Repainting of line 
markings 

Bus stop markings directly opposite 140 Keeper 
Road 11/11/2016 

Stage 
2 

166 35351 KIMMAGE ROAD LWR  D12 Pedestrian Crossing @ junction with Ravensdale Park 29/11/2016 
Stage 
2 

167 35376 PARK WEST ROAD  D10 Pedestrian Crossing near junction w/ Lavery Ave. 07/12/2016 
Stage 
2 

168 33725 BROOKFIELD ROAD  D8 

Pay & Display & 
Permit Parking 
(change of hours) 

for extension of opertional hours.  
  12/09/2016 

Stage 
3 

169 12249 JOHN DILLON STREET  D8 Yellow Box Outside St. Francis CBS. 09/05/2014 
Stage 
4 

170 12251 JOHN DILLON STREET  D8 School Ahead Sign 
On Thomas Davis Street South and John Dillon 
Street. 09/05/2014 

Stage 
4 

171 12638 BRIDGEFOOT STREET  D8 Pedestrian Crossing Across Bridgefoot Street at Usher's Quay. 28/05/2014 
Stage 
4 

172 12897 LEIGHLIN ROAD  D12 Traffic Calming on the road. 16/07/2014 
Stage 
4 

173 14722 SAINT AGNES ROAD  D12 Pedestrian Crossing 
From Rockmead Court Senior Citizens Complex to 
the shops. 17/10/2014 

Stage 
4 

174 15133 MARTIN'S ROW  D20 
Intelligent Traffic 
Signals 

Outside St. Patrick's National School, Chapelizod, 
Dublin 20. 03/11/2014 

Stage 
4 

175 16937 DOLPHIN ROAD  D12 Pedestrian Crossing 
for junction at Rialto Bridge/Herberton 
Rd/Dolphin Rd. 26/02/2015 

Stage 
4 

176 17729 SAINT MARY'S ROAD  D12 Traffic Lights 
 turning left from St. Mary's Road to St. Agnes' 
Road  15/04/2015 

Stage 
4 

177 18499 KYLEMORE WAY  D8 Speed Ramps on the road. 04/06/2015 
Stage 
4 

178 18780 ERRIGAL ROAD  D8 Traffic Calming on the road. 17/06/2015 
Stage 
4 

P
age 32



Item SR Road/Street/Ave. 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received 

SR 
Status 

179 19229 CHERRY ORCHARD AVE.  D10 Traffic Calming 
on the road. 
  20/07/2015 

Stage 
4 

180 19298 COLEPARK DRIVE  D10 Speed Ramps on the road. 22/07/2015 
Stage 
4 

181 20047 KNOCKNAREA ROAD  D8 Double Yellow Lines along side of infant & primary schools 09/09/2015 
Stage 
4 

182 20072 JAMES'S WALK  D8 
Double Yellow Lines 
(Extend) at Fatima Luas stop  10/09/2015 

Stage 
4 

183 20073 REUBEN WALK  D8 
Double Yellow Lines 
(Extend) 

along Reuben Walk/Way onto other side of the 
road  10/09/2015 

Stage 
4 

184 20211 GALTYMORE DRIVE  D12 
Children Crossing 
Sign at both entrances. 15/07/2015 

Stage 
4 

185 20244 CURLEW ROAD  D12 Double Yellow Lines 
due to problems entering Curlew Rd Health 
Centre; parked cars blocking visibility 17/09/2015 

Stage 
4 

186 20335 TYRCONNELL ROAD  D8 Double Yellow Lines outside gate of Tyrconnell Place residence. 22/09/2015 
Stage 
4 

187 20616 THOMAS DAVIS STREET WEST  D8 
Disabled Parking 
Bay (Residential) 

outside No. 23; Pay & Display & Permit Parking 
would be rescinded.  06/10/2015 

Stage 
4 

188 20626 FERNVALE DRIVE  D12 Double Yellow Lines on the road. 21/10/2015 
Stage 
4 

189 20674 RIALTO STREET  D8 Double Yellow Lines at the entrance to the laneway. 09/10/2015 
Stage 
4 

190 20703 BULFIN GARDENS  D8 Double Yellow Lines for one side of Bulfin Gardens 12/10/2015 
Stage 
4 

191 21015 INCHICORE TERRACE SOUTH  D8 
Children Crossing 
Sign on the road. 21/10/2015 

Stage 
4 

192 21045 GRANITE TERRACE  D8 
Children Crossing 
Sign on the road.  08/09/2015 

Stage 
4 

193 27627 CLOGHER ROAD  D12 
Children Crossing 
Sign on the road. 18/11/2015 

Stage 
4 

P
age 33



Item SR Road/Street/Ave. 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received 

SR 
Status 

194 27629 THOMAS DAVIS STREET WEST  D8 
Children Crossing 
Sign outside Nos. 12/13 and 4/5. 18/11/2015 

Stage 
4 

195 28027 RAFTER'S AVE.  D12 Double Yellow Lines at the entrance of the road.  23/11/2015 
Stage 
4 

196 28103 OLD NAAS ROAD  D12 Double Yellow Lines 
at the entrance to Vhi HomeCare, Waverley 
Business Park.  24/11/2015 

Stage 
4 

197 28377 DOLPHIN ROAD  D12 
Children Crossing 
Sign Additional signs near the mini-roundabout. 08/12/2015 

Stage 
4 

198 28399 DONARD ROAD  D12 
Children Crossing 
Sign on the road.  07/12/2015 

Stage 
4 

199 28695 KYLEMORE DRIVE  D10 Speed Ramps on the road.  05/01/2016 
Stage 
4 

200 28785 SAINT MARTIN'S PARK  D6W Parking Prohibition at the entrance to St. Martin’s Park. 04/01/2016 
Stage 
4 

201 28788 DRUMFINN AVE.  D10 Yellow Box 
at the junction of Drumfinn Avenue and Drumfinn 
Road 20/01/2016 

Stage 
4 

202 28790 ISLAND BRIDGE  D8 Speed Ramps 
a ramp or junction plateau (such as at the shops 
on Ballyfermot Road). 20/01/2016 

Stage 
4 

203 28935 MILITARY ROAD  D8 3.5 Tonne Limit 
On Military Road at the junction of St. John's 
Road West. 18/01/2016 

Stage 
4 

204 29120 CON COLBERT ROAD  D10 Traffic Calming along the road 21/01/2016 
Stage 
4 

205 29158 EARL STREET SOUTH  D8 Double Yellow Lines across the rear entrance to No. 26, Hanbury Lane.  26/01/2016 
Stage 
4 

206 29160 ROTHE ABBEY  D8 Double Yellow Lines or a yellow box in the turning area outside No. 76  26/01/2016 
Stage 
4 

207 29201 CASHEL AVE.  D12 
Children Crossing 
Sign on the road, especially at the cul-de-sac.  01/02/2016 

Stage 
4 

208 29264 JOHN MCCORMACK AVE.  D12 Parking Prohibition 
to stop cars parking on footpaths/parking 
restriction measures. 03/02/2016 

Stage 
4 

P
age 34



Item SR Road/Street/Ave. 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received 

SR 
Status 

209 29321 WINDMILL AVE.  D12 
Children Crossing 
Sign 

On Windmill Ave, Windmill Park and Captains 
Road 17/02/2016 

Stage 
4 

210 29338 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD  D8 
Children Crossing 
Sign 

at pedestrian crossing at St John of Gods 
entrance to Memorial Park 03/02/2016 

Stage 
4 

211 29743 RAFTER'S AVE.  D12 Parking Prohibition on the road 17/02/2016 
Stage 
4 

212 29745 RAFTER'S AVE.  D12 
Children Crossing 
Sign on the road.  17/02/2016 

Stage 
4 

213 29818 REHOBOTH PLACE  D8 
Pay & Display & 
Permit Parking on the road.  18/02/2016 

Stage 
4 

214 30033 RAFTER'S AVE.  D12 Double Yellow Lines 

at the junction of Rafters Avenue and Rafters 
Road and on Rafters Road to the junction of 
Crumlin Road.   02/03/2016 

Stage 
4 

215 30104 ALMEIDA AVE.  D8 
Children Crossing 
Sign on the road 16/03/2016 

Stage 
4 

216 30107 REGINALD STREET  D8 
Children Crossing 
Sign on the street. 16/03/2016 

Stage 
4 

217 30150 SAINT ANTHONY'S ROAD  D8 
Caution Children 
Sign particularly at top of road near the pitch. 08/03/2016 

Stage 
4 

218 30326 SAINT ANTHONY'S ROAD  D8 
Children Crossing 
Sign 

particularly at top of road near the pitch 
(previous request sent in under SR 30150). 16/03/2016 

Stage 
4 

219 30393 MARTIN'S ROW  D20 One-Way System Request to make above road one way system. 21/03/2016 
Stage 
4 

220 30491 OLD NAAS ROAD  D12 Double Yellow Lines 

On the west side of the entrance and opposite 
the entrance to Bluebell Business Park and 
Bluebell Business Centre 09/02/2016 

Stage 
4 

221 31166 BOW LANE WEST  D8 3.5 Tonne Limit on the road. 05/05/2016 
Stage 
4 

222 31263 STANNAWAY AVE.  D12 Double Yellow Lines 
on the corners and at terminus to allow bus 
access. 03/05/2016 

Stage 
4 

P
age 35



Item SR Road/Street/Ave. 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received 

SR 
Status 

223 31363 REHOBOTH AVE.  D8 
Pay & Display & 
Permit Parking on Rehoboth Avenue and Rehoboth Place. 13/05/2016 

Stage 
4 

224 31504 DRIMNAGH ROAD  D12 Double Yellow Lines on the laneway to the rear of Nos. 121-171.  04/04/2016 
Stage 
4 

225 32348 PATRICK STREET  D8 Yellow Box Junction congested with traffic blocking it 24/06/2016 
Stage 
4 

226 33279 RAVENSDALE DRIVE  D12 
Children Crossing 
Sign on the road.  15/08/2016 

Stage 
4 

227 33280 RAVENSDALE DRIVE  D12 Speed Ramps 
request for speed ramps (and/or children 
crossing sign).  16/08/2016 

Stage 
4 

228 33563 EMMET ROAD  D8 
Double Yellow Lines 
(Rescind) outside 124F The Starter Centre. 02/09/2016 

Stage 
4 

229 33595 DOLPHIN ROAD  D12 Engineer Query 

 signage on canal side of playing pitches (on r111 
main Dolphin road segment) reminding motorists 
to park legally. 02/09/2016 

Stage 
4 

230 33996 CONNOLLY AVE.  D8 Stop Sign Stop or Yield sign at junction with Bulfin Rd. 21/09/2016 
Stage 
4 

231 34085 CHERRY ORCHARD AVE.  D10 Traffic Calming chicane or ramps or other measures 24/09/2016 
Stage 
4 

232 34138 KEEPER ROAD  D8 Double Yellow Lines 

at the junction of Keeper Road and Slievenamon 
Road. 
  
  27/09/2016 

Stage 
4 

233 34140 KEEPER ROAD    Stop Sign STOP LINE/MARKING 04/10/2016 
Stage 
4 

234 34715 MOURNE ROAD  D12 Double Yellow Lines 
double yellow lines on Mourne Road, Knocknarea 
Road, Curlew Road. 27/10/2016 

Stage 
4 

235 34754 NEW IRELAND ROAD  D8 Double Yellow Lines between Nos. 47 and 49.   26/10/2016 
Stage 
4 

236 34776 BELGROVE PARK  D20 Parking Prohibition along the street 28/10/2016 Stage 

P
age 36



Item SR Road/Street/Ave. 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received 

SR 
Status 

4 

237 34919 MERCHANTS QUAY  D8 Bus Stop Marking move stop 30 metres down the quay 08/11/2016 
Stage 
4 

238 34949 JAMES'S WALK  D8 Double Yellow Lines 

looking for Double Yellow Lines on both sides of 
the yellow box to stop cars parking up on top of 
the School Warden reducing visibility, as the 
crossing is on a bit of a bend. 09/11/2016 

Stage 
4 

239 35026 REHOBOTH PLACE  D8 Double Yellow Lines 
at entrance to the laneway (opposite the back 
door of Lowes Pub).  10/11/2016 

Stage 
4 

240 35092 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD  D8 Yellow Box (Extend) 

on South Circular Road at the junction with 
Inchicore Road for traffic from Islandbridge 
turning Right. 16/11/2016 

Stage 
4 

241 35188 CHAPELIZOD BY PASS  D10 Bus Lane 
upgrading the current Chapelizod Bypass Bus 
Lane Project 21/11/2016 

Stage 
4 

242 35192 CLOGHER ROAD  D12 Engineer Query 
request for road markings to improve 
parking/traffic situation. 22/11/2016 

Stage 
4 

243 35294 BALLYFERMOT ROAD  D10 Yellow Box on the northwest corner of the roundabout. 29/11/2016 
Stage 
4 

244 35296 INCHICORE ROAD  D8 Loading Bay 
outside Kilmainham Gaol as part of Plaza 
upgrade. 29/11/2016 

Stage 
4 

245 35334 OLD COUNTY GLEN  D12 Double Yellow Lines at the entrance to the Estate. 05/12/2016 
Stage 
4 

246 35578 WINDMILL ROAD  D12 Buildout 
at the junction of Windmill Road and Crumlin 
Road. 15/12/2016 

Stage 
4 

247 11895 OLIVER BOND STREET  D8 Engineer Query 
Request for  a traffic island in the middle of the 
crossing.  22/04/2014 

Stage 
5 

248 12989 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD  D8 Pedestrian Crossing outside the Dublin Mosque, No. 165. 27/06/2014 
Stage 
5 

249 15014 MEATH STREET  D8 
Pay & Display 
Parking 

Reps to rescind Loading Bays and install Pay and 
Display Parking. 05/11/2014 

Stage 
5 

P
age 37



Item SR Road/Street/Ave. 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received 

SR 
Status 

250 16527 CHURCH AVE. SOUTH  D8 Double Yellow Lines at the junction of South Circular Road. 05/02/2015 
Stage 
5 

251 17398 CHAPELIZOD ROAD  D20 
Pay & Display & 
Permit Parking at Mullingar Terrace. 31/03/2015 

Stage 
5 

252 17408 REUBEN STREET  D8 
Continuous White 
Line (Extend) 

Northern end of Reuben Street with its junction 
at James's Street. 
  01/04/2015 

Stage 
5 

253 17481 WINETAVERN STREET  D2 Pedestrian Crossing at Christ Church 13/04/2015 
Stage 
5 

254 17777 KYLEMORE DRIVE  D10 Traffic Calming on the road. 22/04/2015 
Stage 
5 

255 17920 BLACKDITCH ROAD  D10 No Parking Request for 2 NO PARKING signs. 30/04/2015 
Stage 
5 

256 18175 BRAITHWAITE STREET  D8 Engineer Query 

Request from South Central Area Office to put in 
double yellow lines outside the vehicular access 
gates to the allotments at Braithwaite Street and 
Weaver Square.  15/05/2015 

Stage 
5 

257 18599 COOLEY ROAD  D12 Pedestrian Crossing at the junction of Cooley Road and Crumlin Road. 10/06/2015 
Stage 
5 

258 19473 NASH STREET  D8 
Disabled Parking 
Bay (Residential) outside No. 64. 04/08/2015 

Stage 
5 

259 20477 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD  D8 
Disabled Parking 
Bay (Residential) 

adjacent to No.684, South Circular Road, 
Kilmainham. 30/09/2015 

Stage 
5 

260 20632 RIALTO COURT  D8 Double Yellow Lines 

On Rialto Cottages, Rialto Court at end parallel to 
James's Walk, and around Rialto Court buildings. 
  07/10/2015 

Stage 
5 

261 20800 JAMES'S STREET  D8 Double Yellow Lines outside No. 42a Allen's Garage. 14/10/2015 
Stage 
5 

P
age 38



Item SR Road/Street/Ave. 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received 

SR 
Status 

262 30000 MILITARY ROAD  D8 Car Club Bay 

Request from Go Car car sharing to have a bay at 
the current Tourist Bay adjacent to the Dublin 
Bikes Stand. 29/02/2016 

Stage 
5 

263 30001 INCHICORE ROAD  D8 Car Club Bay 

Request to have a GoCar car sharing parking bay 
at Kilmainham Gaol. 
  29/02/2016 

Stage 
5 

264 30747 OLD KILMAINHAM  D8 
Double Yellow Lines 
(Extend) up to Lady’s Lane.   13/04/2016 

Stage 
5 

265 31000 GRATTAN CRESCENT  D8 Double Yellow Lines 
as part of Bus Time Improvements for route No. 
40. 25/04/2016 

Stage 
5 

266 31398 KILMAINHAM LANE  D8 
Disabled Parking 
Bay (Residential) 

Outside No. 23.  Pay and Display and Permit 
Parking would be rescinded.  18/05/2016 

Stage 
5 

267 31602 HERBERTON ROAD  D8 
Double Yellow Lines 
(Extend) 

on Herberton Road at the junction of New Ireland 
Road.  20/05/2016 

Stage 
5 

268 31843 SOUTH CIRCULAR ROAD  D8 Yellow Box at Mannions DIY Shop. 08/06/2016 
Stage 
5 

269 31939 MOURNE ROAD  D12 
Disabled Parking 
Bay (Residential) outside No. 174.  13/06/2016 

Stage 
5 

270 31940 OLD KILMAINHAM  D8 
Double Yellow Lines 
(Extend) on above road 13/06/2016 

Stage 
5 

271 32023 CRUMLIN ROAD  D12 Electric Car Bay 
Opposite First Stop Tyres beside Crumlin 
shopping Centre. 16/06/2016 

Stage 
5 

272 32437 NEW ROW SOUTH  D8 
Disabled Parking 
Bay (Residential) 

outside No. 5, Lauderdale Terrace, New Row 
South. Pay and Display and Permit Parking 
would be rescinded. 01/07/2016 

Stage 
5 

273 33212 OLD KILMAINHAM  D8 
Double Yellow Lines 
(Extend) request to extend DYLs  10/08/2016 

Stage 
5 

274 33216 OLD KILMAINHAM  D8 
Double Yellow Lines 
(Extend) request to extend DYLs 11/08/2016 

Stage 
5 

P
age 39



Item SR Road/Street/Ave. 
Post 
code Topic Request Description 

Date 
Received 

SR 
Status 

275 33305 JOHN DILLON STREET  D8 Double Yellow Lines on junction with Hanover Lane 17/08/2016 
Stage 
5 

276 33472 STANNAWAY AVE.  D12 Bus Cage Marking on the road. 23/08/2016 
Stage 
5 

277 34193 BALLYFERMOT ROAD  D10 
School Warden 
Crossing Box outside St.Gabriels School. 30/09/2016 

Stage 
5 

278 34284 CLADDAGH GREEN  D10 Yellow Box on the road. 12/10/2016 
Stage 
5 

279 34314 BASIN STREET UPPER  D8 Double Yellow Lines 
on Basin View, outside Canalway Educate 
Together National School. 07/10/2016 

Stage 
5 

 

P
age 40



Road Maintenance Services -Works Programme 2017 
 

  

                                          

South Central 
Area 

Regional Carriageway Improvements Regional Footpath Improvements Regional Other Local Carriageway Improvements Local Footpath Improvements Local Other 

Scheme 
/Activity Length Area Contract Direct Lab Length Area Contract 

Direct 
Lab Contract 

Direct 
Lab Length Area Contract 

Direct 
Lab Length Area Contract 

Direct 
Lab Contract 

Direct 
Lab 

                                          

Repairs and 
Carriageway 
resurfacing                                         

South 
Circular Road 
(between 481 
and 501) 208 1818 €99,990                                   

Military Rd 
sth bound 
lane St Johns 
Rd W & 
Kilmainham 
Hosp                     287 1425 €78,375               

Crumlin Road 404 10250 €563,750                                   

Ballyfermot 
Road 716 6182 €340,010                                   

Pimlico                     250 1330 €73,150               

Mountshannon 
Road                     212 1755 €96,525               

Mayfield 
Road                     101 786 €43,230               

Ardee 
St/Oscar 
Square 
junction                     174 1910 

€105,05
0               

                                          

                                          

                     

                     

P
age 41



Miscellaneous 
Direct Labour-
Regional                    €432,725                     

Street Name 
Plates                   €5,000                     

Winter 
Maintenance                    €25,000                     

Incident 
Response 
Unit                   €25,000                     

                                          

                                          

Footpath 
Reconstruction                                         

SCRd (south 
side between 
Donore 
Avenue and 
no 245 SCRd)         183 722 €57,760                           

Vicar St (both 
sides)                             100 214 €17,120       

Swifts Alley 
(south side)                             88 291 €23,280       

Carmens Hall                             5 13 €1,040       

Footpaths 
various 
locations in 
Ballyfermot, 
Crumlin & 
Drimnagh                             625 1250 €100,000       

                                          

Ramps                                     €100,000   

                                          

Miscellaneous 
Direct Labour-
Local                                       €432,725 

Street Name 
Plates                                       €35,000 

Winter 
Maintenance                                        €25,000 

Incident                                       €25,000 

P
age 42



Response 
Unit 

                                          

Totals   18250 €1,003,750 €0   722 €57,760 €0 €0 €487,725   7206 €396,330 €0   1768 €141,440 €0 
€100,00

0 €517,725 

                                          

                                          

    Area Contract Direct Lab                                 

Regional 
Carriageway 
Improvements   18,250 €1,003,750 €0                                 

Regional 
Footpath 
Improvements   722 €57,760 €0                                 

Regional 
Other     €0 €487,725                                 

Local 
Carriageway 
Improvements   7,206 €396,330 €0                                 

Local Footpath 
Improvements   1,768 €141,440 €0                                 

Local Other     €100,000 €517,725                                 

Totals     €1,699,280 €1,005,450                                 

 

P
age 43





1 
 

 
 
 

HOUSING ALLOCATIONS REPORT JANUARY 2017 
CURRENT WAITING LIST STATISTICS AND LETTINGS REPORT FOR 2016 

 
              4th January 2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contents - 
Tables 1 (a)(b)(c) - JANUARY 2017 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY BAND CATEGORY AND AREA 
Tables 2 (a)(b)(c) -JANUARY 2017 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY WAITING TIME AND AREA 
Tables 3 (a)(b)(c) - JANUARY 2017 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY BEDSIZE REQUIREMENTS AND AREA 
Tables 4 (a)(b)(c) - JANUARY 2017 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY FAMILY SIZE AND AREA 
Table 5 (a) - JANUARY 2017 HOUSING WAITING LIST FIGURES BY BEDROOM REQUIREMENTS AND WAITING TIME ON LIST 
Table 5 (b)-JANUARY 2017 HOUSING WAITING LIST FIGURES BY FAMILY SIZE AND AREA 
Table 6 - 2016 LETTINGS LISTS BY CATEGORY AND MONTH 
Tables 7 (a)(b)(c) - 2016 LETTINGS LIST FIGURES BY CATEGORY AND AREA HOUSED 
Tables 7 (d) - 2016 HOMELESS LETTINGS BY FAMILY SIZE AND AREA COMMITTEE 
Tables 8 (a)(b)(c) - 2016 LETTINGS LIST FIGURES BY DWELLING SIZE AND AREA HOUSED 
Tables 9 (a)(b)(c) - 2016 LETTINGS LIST FIGURES BY CATEGORY OF LETTING AND AREA HOUSED 
 

P
age 45



2 
 

Tables 1 (a)(b)(c) - JANUARY 2017 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY BAND CATEGORY AND AREA 

January 2017 HOUSING Waiting List figures by Band Category TABLE 1 (a)

Waiting List Code Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Band 2 Housing list 1505 311 1039 716 647 646 479 359 482 117 6301

Band 2 Housing older 66 3 64 65 23 28 28 45 76 11 409

Band 3 Housing list 2665 384 1615 705 814 778 548 417 654 122 8702

Band 3 Housing older 184 14 147 86 79 74 51 63 115 16 829

Tied Accommodation 1 1

Traveller priority 73 19 27 1 33 7 2 1 1 164

Housing Medical priority 60 5 32 15 18 18 8 12 8 5 181

Housing medical older 15 7 7 3 3 1 3 8 1 48

Housing Welfare 21 6 9 13 12 6 6 8 1 3 85

Housing welfare older 2 1 1 4 1 1 3 1 14

Homeless 682 165 306 358 210 136 199 74 58 24 2212

Housing List Total 5273 907 3247 1967 1843 1696 1323 984 1405 301 18946

January 2017 Transfer Waiting List figures by Band Category TABLE 1 (b)

Waiting List Code Area B  Area D   Area E   Area H  Area J  Area K  Area L   Area M  Area N   Area P    Grand Total

Band 2 Transfer list 211 44 193 192 165 188 192 124 45 39 1393

Band 2 Transfer older 75 4 83 33 25 28 17 36 37 8 346

Band 3 Transfer list 791 147 576 410 396 367 444 264 134 107 3636

Band 3 Transfer older 55 37 62 52 69 29 66 38 38 12 458

Surrendering larger 11 7 18 10 15 9 17 8 4 5 104

Transfer Medical priority 30 4 24 19 13 14 14 17 7 142

Transfer Medical older 5 2 9 8 3 3 6 4 3 1 44

Transfer Welfare 55 12 38 24 49 30 24 11 8 5 256

Transfer welfare older 7 1 1 9 1 5 2 1 27

Transfer List Total 1240 257 1004 749 744 669 785 504 270 184 6406

January 2017 Combined Waiting List Figures by Band Category TABLE 1 (c)

Waiting List Code Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Housing List Total 5273 907 3247 1967 1843 1696 1323 984 1405 301 18946

Transfer List Total 1240 257 1004 749 744 669 785 504 270 184 6406

Grand Total 6513 1164 4251 2716 2587 2365 2108 1488 1675 485 25352  

 

P
age 46



3 
 

Tables 2 (a)(b)(c) -JANUARY 2017 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY WAITING TIME AND AREA 
 

January 2017 HOUSING Waiting List Figures by waiting time TABLE 2 (a)

No of years waiting on list Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

0 to 1 year 669 106 301 188 200 181 136 94 103 14 1992

1 to 5 years 2286 344 1435 866 783 772 572 421 614 97 8190

5 to 10 years 1936 368 1150 711 697 577 445 344 487 119 6834

over 10 years 382 89 361 202 163 166 170 125 201 71 1930

Grand Total 5273 907 3247 1967 1843 1696 1323 984 1405 301 18946

January 2017 TRANSFER Waiting List Figures by waiting time TABLE 2 (b)

No of years waiting on list Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

0 to 1 year 95 19 85 56 60 30 58 38 17 7 465

1 to 5 years 319 101 265 208 183 137 229 135 67 35 1679

5 to 10 years 434 86 292 243 236 213 242 172 81 48 2047

over 10 years 392 51 362 242 265 289 256 159 105 94 2215

Grand Total 1240 257 1004 749 744 669 785 504 270 184 6406

January 2017 COMBINED Waiting List Figures by waiting time TABLE 2 (c)

No of years waiting on list Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

0 to 1 year 764 125 386 244 260 211 194 132 120 21 2457

1 to 5 years 2605 445 1700 1074 966 909 801 556 681 132 9869

5 to 10 years 2370 454 1442 954 933 790 687 516 568 167 8881

over 10 years 774 140 723 444 428 455 426 284 306 165 4145

Grand Total 6513 1164 4251 2716 2587 2365 2108 1488 1675 485 25352  
 

 

 

 

P
age 47



4 
 

Tables 3 (a)(b)(c) - JANUARY 2017 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY BEDSIZE REQUIREMENTS AND AREA 
 

January 2016 HOUSING Waiting List Figures by Bedsize Requirements TABLE 3 (a)

Bedsize Requirements Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

1 Bed 2516 411 1497 1351 867 794 876 652 913 171 10048

2 Bed 2051 366 1274 458 727 611 319 260 346 76 6488

3 Bed 646 119 432 143 224 251 103 65 127 47 2157

4 Bed 53 9 37 13 22 34 19 5 16 7 215

5 Bed 7 2 7 2 3 6 6 2 3 38

Grand Total 5273 907 3247 1967 1843 1696 1323 984 1405 301 18946

January 2016 TRANSFER Waiting List Figures by Bedsize Requirements TABLE 3 (b)

Bedsize Requirements Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

1 Bed 336 102 309 331 229 158 393 233 161 74 2326

2 Bed 464 72 365 231 254 237 236 173 66 75 2173

3 Bed 379 67 278 163 225 227 143 87 38 32 1639

4 Bed 55 13 42 19 28 46 13 11 5 2 234

5 Bed 6 3 10 5 8 1 1 34

Grand Total 1240 257 1004 749 744 669 785 504 270 184 6406

January 2016 COMBINED Waiting List Figures by Bedsize Requirements TABLE 3 (c)

Bedsize Requirements Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

1 Bed 2852 513 1806 1682 1096 952 1269 885 1074 245 12374

2 Bed 2515 438 1639 689 981 848 555 433 412 151 8661

3 Bed 1025 186 710 306 449 478 246 152 165 79 3796

4 Bed 108 22 79 32 50 80 32 16 21 9 449

5 Bed 13 5 17 7 11 7 6 2 3 1 72

Grand Total 6513 1164 4251 2716 2587 2365 2108 1488 1675 485 25352  
 

 

 

P
age 48



5 
 

Tables 4 (a)(b)(c) - JANUARY 2017 WAITING LIST FIGURES BY FAMILY SIZE AND AREA 
 

January 2017 HOUSING Waiting List Figures by Family Size TABLE 4 (a)

Family Size Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Single 2314 380 1358 1237 807 734 809 608 835 154 9236

Couples 180 27 136 111 56 57 65 41 74 15 762

Families 2779 500 1753 619 980 905 449 335 496 132 8948

Housing list Total 5273 907 3247 1967 1843 1696 1323 984 1405 301 18946

January 2017 TRANSFER Waiting List Figures by Family Size TABLE 4 (b)

Family Size Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

single 307 88 272 294 194 134 348 196 144 64 2041

couple 29 14 38 40 35 24 46 35 15 8 284

Families 904 155 694 415 515 511 391 273 111 112 4081

Transfer List Total 1240 257 1004 749 744 669 785 504 270 184 6406

January 2017 COMBINED Waiting List Figures by Family Size TABLE 4 (c)

Family Size Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

single 2621 468 1630 1531 1001 868 1157 804 979 218 11277

couple 209 41 174 151 91 81 111 76 89 23 1046

Families 3683 655 2447 1034 1495 1416 840 608 607 244 13029

Transfer List Total 6513 1164 4251 2716 2587 2365 2108 1488 1675 485 25352  

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 49



6 
 

Table 5 (a) - JANUARY 2017 HOUSING WAITING LIST FIGURES BY BEDROOM REQUIREMENTS AND WAITING TIME ON LIST 
 

January 2017 HOUSING Waiting List Figures by Bedsize requirements & Time on List TABLE 5 (a)

Size No of years on list Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

one bed 0 to 1 year 379 63 168 145 116 112 96 66 74 6 1225

1 to 5 years 1148 163 697 591 402 380 372 281 398 59 4491

5 to 10 years 860 154 518 490 299 255 301 215 327 73 3492

over 10 years 129 31 114 125 50 47 107 90 114 33 840

one bed  Total 2516 411 1497 1351 867 794 876 652 913 171 10048

two bed 0 to 1 year 229 35 107 39 76 47 33 26 25 7 624

1 to 5 years 923 146 586 220 315 297 160 114 166 28 2955

5 to 10 years 770 153 451 159 285 212 101 100 115 28 2374

over 10 years 129 32 130 40 51 55 25 20 40 13 535

two bed  Total 2051 366 1274 458 727 611 319 260 346 76 6488

three bed 0 to 1 year 55 8 25 3 8 20 6 2 3 1 131

1 to 5 years 195 29 140 49 61 83 35 24 47 8 671

5 to 10 years 284 58 164 58 107 95 35 27 36 15 879

over 10 years 112 24 103 33 48 53 27 12 41 23 476

three bed  Total 646 119 432 143 224 251 103 65 127 47 2157

four bed 0 to 1 year 3 1 1 1 1 1 8

1 to 5 years 18 5 11 5 4 11 5 2 3 2 66

5 to 10 years 21 2 14 4 5 15 6 2 7 3 79

over 10 years 11 2 11 3 13 7 7 1 5 2 62

four bed Total 53 9 37 13 22 34 19 5 16 7 215

five bed 0 to 1 year 3 1 4

1 to 5 years 2 1 1 1 1 1 7

5 to 10 years 1 1 3 1 2 2 10

over 10 years 1 3 1 1 4 4 2 1 17

five bed Total 7 2 7 2 3 6 6 2 3 38

Housing List Grand Total 5273 907 3247 1967 1843 1696 1323 984 1405 301 18946  
 

 

P
age 50



7 
 

Table 5 (b)-JANUARY 2017 HOUSING WAITING LIST FIGURES BY FAMILY SIZE AND AREA 
 

January 2016 HOUSING Waiting List Figures by Family Size TABLE 5 (b)

Family Size Area B  Area D   Area E   Area H  Area J  Area K  Area L   Area M  Area N   Area P    Grand Total

Single 2314 380 1358 1237 807 734 809 608 835 154 9236

Single + 1 1099 186 671 224 406 332 150 138 135 38 3379

Single + 2 595 160 399 106 206 196 65 47 75 21 1870

Single + 3 191 31 97 34 54 76 19 13 26 12 553

Single + 4 44 7 28 7 21 16 3 6 4 3 139

Single + 5 10 1 6 3 5 3 5 2 35

Single + 6 1 1 2 1 4 2 11

Single + 7 1 1 1 3

Single + 8 1 1

Singles Total 4255 766 2562 1612 1503 1359 1048 812 1080 230 15227

Couples 180 27 136 111 56 57 65 41 74 15 762

Couple + 1 268 30 142 81 79 78 62 55 88 18 901

Couple + 2 356 42 241 95 109 88 75 47 102 22 1177

Couple + 3 146 26 110 44 61 57 39 18 35 9 545

Couple + 4 42 10 40 15 26 34 16 6 17 4 210

Couple + 5 16 3 6 5 7 13 10 3 5 3 71

Couple + 6 5 2 7 3 2 7 5 1 2 34

Couple + 7 3 1 2 1 1 1 1 2 12

Couple + 8 2 1 1 2 6

Couple + 9 1 1

Couples Total 1017 141 685 355 340 337 275 172 325 71 3718

Housing List Total 5273 907 3247 1967 1843 1696 1323 984 1405 301 18946  
 
 
 
 

P
age 51



8 
 

Table 6 - 2016 LETTINGS LISTS BY CATEGORY AND MONTH 
 
Jan - Dec 2016 Total Lettings DCC, RAS Voluntary, HAP TABLE 6

Category Of Award                         HOUSING LIST                           TRANSFER LIST Ras HAP TOTAL

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE JULY AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE JULY AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

No of 

Lettings

Band 2 11 7 7 11 9 6 10 11 12 19 20 11 7 9 5 9 7 21 12 6 15 14 6 4 249

Band 3 5 4 11 5 9 4 7 7 11 12 7 7 2 6 13 12 8 10 5 9 14 11 11 10 200

Overall Priority Cases

Medical 3 2 6 5 2 2 6 2 9 5 4 2 2 2 1 1 3 5 4 3 6 3 4 82

Welfare 2 7 5 2 4 5 8 7 8 7 9 6 4 2 1 4 3 6 5 4 5 6 3 113

Traveller priority 2 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 14

Fire Emergency 1 1 1 3

Surrendering Larger 2 2 1 1 2 1 1 10

Tied Accommodation

Detenanting 1 4 5 11 1 2 9 3 3 39

Estate Management 1 1

Essential Maintenance 1 1 2

Voluntary 3 1 6 4 1 8 22 9 10 10 26 10 5 16 1 10 7 1 6 4 5 5 9 6 185

Unable to afford

Homeless DCC 13 15 17 22 14 13 16 12 21 18 21 14 196

Homeless - Voluntary 4 1 7 1 1 15 7 6 6 5 7 60

Financial Contribution 1 1

Mortage to Rent 3 5 11 7 1 5 15 15 9 19 11 6 107

Social Leasing Unit 1 1 1 1 4

Homeless-Social Leasing Unit 6 1 3 1 1 0 1 2 3 18

RAS Lettings 41 41

HAP Lettings 725 725

TOTAL LETTINGS 50 44 65 67 43 46 103 71 89 99 107 66 20 37 24 41 31 53 35 26 52 45 41 29 41 725 2050

   * The HAP figure given by Parkgate Hall from Jan to end of December is 725 - of these 424 were housed within DCC  
 
 

 

 

 

P
age 52



9 
 

Tables 7 (a)(b)(c) - 2016 LETTINGS LIST FIGURES BY CATEGORY AND AREA HOUSED 
Overall Housing & Transfer Lettings for 2016 TABLE 7 (a)

Priority or Points Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Band 2 73 20 44 42 26 15 60 18 5 17 320

Band 3 42 27 40 39 24 21 44 11 3 8 259

Detenanting 2 9 10 3 14 1 9 1 49

Essential Maintenance 1 1 2

Estate Management 1 1

Financial Contribution 1 1

Fire Emergency 2 1 3

Homeless Priority 47 15 35 36 27 14 49 36 8 7 274

Medical Priority 13 6 23 9 8 9 11 10 9 4 102

Mortgage to Rent 27 7 38 6 21 1 7 107

Surrender Larger 4 3 4 1 12

Traveller Priority 6 2 3 2 3 1 17

Welfare Priority 26 8 19 18 15 13 15 14 6 3 137

Grand Total 238 90 214 161 129 79 202 91 40 40 1284

2016 Housing  Lettings by category and Area Housed TABLE 7 (b)

Priority or Points Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Band 2 34 12 21 30 18 7 41 10 4 5 182

Band 3 18 14 16 14 14 7 25 6 2 3 119

Financial Contribution 1 1

Homeless Priority 47 15 35 36 27 14 49 36 8 7 274

Medical Priority 6 5 18 4 3 7 7 5 5 2 62

Mortgage to Rent 27 7 38 6 21 1 7 107

Traveller Priority 6 2 3 2 3 1 17

Welfare Priority 13 7 15 12 8 6 9 12 3 3 88

Grand Total 151 62 146 102 94 45 138 70 22 20 850

2016 Transfer Lettings  by category and Area Housed TABLE 7 (c)

Priority or Points Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Band 2 39 8 23 12 8 8 19 8 1 12 138

Band 3 24 13 24 25 10 14 19 5 1 5 140

Detenanting 2 9 10 3 14 1 9 1 49

Essential Maintenance 1 1 2

Estate Management 1 1

Fire Emergency 2 1 3

Medical Priority 7 1 5 5 5 2 4 5 4 2 40

Surrender Larger 4 3 4 1 12

Welfare Priority 13 1 4 6 7 7 6 2 3 49
Grand Total 87 28 68 59 35 34 64 21 18 20 434  
Please Note - The tables above do not include the HAP or RAS annual figures as more detailed information is not available at this time 

P
age 53



10 
 

Tables 7 (d) - 2016 HOMELESS LETTINGS BY FAMILY SIZE AND AREA COMMITTEE 
Table 7(d)

Total Homeless Housed  2016    Central Area     N/C Area North West Area     South East Area     South Central Area Grand Total

Family Size Area H Area P Area B Area D Area D Area E Area L Area M Area N Area J Area K Area L

Homeless Singles 22 5 9 1 7 17 6 27 7 10 4 35 150

Homeless Families 14 2 38 8 17 2 9 1 17 10 6 124

Homeless Total 36 7 47 1 15 34 8 36 8 27 14 41 274  
 
Tables 8 (a)(b)(c) - 2016 LETTINGS LIST FIGURES BY DWELLING SIZE AND AREA HOUSED 
Overall Housing & Transfer Lettings for 2016 by Dwelling Size and Area Housed TABLE 8 (a)

Dwelling Size Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Bedsit 25 4 29 22 4 9 15 18 10 5 141

one bed 38 44 51 71 43 15 102 42 13 21 440

two bed 52 31 59 55 52 27 74 26 16 10 402

three bed 103 11 57 13 28 27 10 5 1 4 259

four bed 20 18 2 1 1 42

Grand Total 238 90 214 161 129 79 202 91 40 40 1284

2016 Housing Lettings by Dwelling Size and Area Housed TABLE 8 (b)

Dwelling Size Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Bedsit 12 3 17 16 4 7 12 16 9 2 98

one bed 10 22 30 46 25 8 71 33 8 7 260

two bed 45 26 43 34 43 20 53 18 5 9 296

three bed 74 11 48 6 20 9 2 3 2 175

four bed 10 8 2 1 21

Grand Total 151 62 146 102 94 45 138 70 22 20 850

2016 Transfer Lettings by Dwelling Size and Area Housed TABLE 8 (c)

Dwelling Size Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Bedsit 13 1 12 6 2 3 2 1 3 43

one bed 28 22 21 25 18 7 31 9 5 14 180

two bed 7 5 16 21 9 7 21 8 11 1 106

three bed 29 9 7 8 18 8 2 1 2 84

four bed 10 10 1 21

Grand Total 87 28 68 59 35 34 64 21 18 20 434  
Please Note - The tables above do not include the HAP or RAS annual figures as more detailed information is not available at this time. 

P
age 54



11 
 

Tables 9 (a)(b)(c) - 2016 LETTINGS LIST FIGURES BY CATEGORY OF LETTING AND AREA HOUSED 
Overall Housing & Transfer Lettings For 2016 by category of Letting and Area Housed TABLE 9 (a)

Category of letting Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Bungalow 2 2

Maisonettes 4 2 5 3 14

Mortgage to Rent 27 7 38 6 21 1 7 107

Newbuild Apartment 9 9

Previously Occupied (Apartment) 8 22 6 60 19 7 112 45 6 12 297

Previously Occupied (House) 37 7 18 12 31 18 5 6 3 4 141

Purchase of Previously Occupied Dwelling 40 3 19 8 9 23 6 2 3 113

Refurbished Apartment 5 23 28

Senior Citizen Existing unit 35 35 61 26 32 20 13 22 18 7 269

Senior Citizen Refurbished Unit 16 8 13 37

Social Leasing 3 9 1 6 1 1 1 22

Voluntary Housing 67 10 61 40 6 6 35 15 4 1 245

Grand Total 238 90 214 161 129 79 202 91 40 40 1284

2016 Housing Lettings by Category of Letting and Area Housed TABLE 9 (b)

Category of letting Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Bungalow 1 1

Maisonettes 4 2 5 2 13

Mortgage to Rent 27 7 38 6 21 1 7 107

Previously Occupied (Apartment) 6 17 6 35 17 4 75 33 6 11 210

Previously Occupied (House) 25 7 16 8 21 11 1 3 3 95

Purchase of Previously Occupied Dwelling 25 3 10 4 7 12 5 1 2 69

Refurbished Apartment 2 14 16

Senior Citizen Existing unit 14 17 32 17 14 13 4 18 13 2 144

Senior Citizen Refurbished Unit 3 1 4

Social Leasing 3 9 1 5 1 1 1 21

Voluntary Housing 49 6 33 28 4 1 31 14 3 1 170

Grand Total 151 62 146 102 94 45 138 70 22 20 850

2016 Transfer Lettings by Category of Letting and Area Housed TABLE 9 (c)

Category of letting Area B   Area D   Area E  Area H   Area J   Area K   Area L   Area M  Area N    Area P  Grand Total

Bungalow 1 1

Maisonettes 1 1

Newbuild Apartment 9 9

Previously Occupied (Apartment) 2 5 25 2 3 37 12 1 87

Previously Occupied (House) 12 2 4 10 7 4 3 3 1 46

Purchase of Previously Occupied Dwelling 15 9 4 2 11 1 1 1 44

Refurbished Apartment 3 9 12

Senior Citizen Existing unit 21 18 29 9 18 7 9 4 5 5 125

Senior Citizen Refurbished Unit 16 5 12 33

Social Leasing 1 1

Voluntary Housing 18 4 28 12 2 5 4 1 1 75

Grand Total 87 28 68 59 35 34 64 21 18 20 434  
Please Note - The tables above do not include the HAP or RAS annual figures as more detailed information is not available at this time. 

P
age 55





ROAD DRAINAGE

MAINTENANCE UNIT
GULLY CLEANING OPERATIONS 11/01/17

Total Inspected:   129

Total Cleaned:   123

Total Omissions:   6

Total Repairs 

Noted:   17

Total Street 

Visits:   78

Date Area Street Insp. Cl. Om. Rep. M/V Comments

12/12/16 31 CON COLBERT ROAD PL side of l/s 6 2 2 0 0 GV 1

12/12/16 31 SARSFIELD RD PL under bridge 5 5 0 0 GV 1

13/12/16 31 SARSFIELD RD PL under bridge 1 1 0 0 GV 1 1 flood cleared

16/12/16 31 SARSFIELD ROAD 0 0 0 0 GV 2 No flooding

20/12/16 32

BRIDGE ST LWR PL @ loading bay & 

o'sheas 3 3 0 0 GV 1

new cap

,HDN

new cap

,HDN

16/12/16 32 BRIDGEFOOT STREET 0 0 0 1 MAINT STH cieared concretefrom gully

01/12/16 32 COOK ST PL @ needle exchange 2 2 0 0 GV 1

15/12/16 32 HEUSTON BRIDGE NTH PL @ bike rack 3 3 0 0 GV 1

15/12/16 32 LADY'S LANE PL all gullies 4 4 0 0 GV 1

05/12/16 32

S C Rd inchicorerd-conyinghamrd PL @ 

757 2 2 0 0 GV 1

13/12/16 32 SAINT AUDEON'S TERRACE 2 2 0 0 CV Rd finished

16/12/16 45 DONORE AVENUE 0 0 0 0 GV 2 No flooding

01/12/16 47 CEANNT FORT 21 19 2 0 GV 1 CQ

22/12/16 47 CEANNT FORT 14 14 0 0 SV 1 Osp/small van

02/12/16 47 EARL STREET STH PL at gates 2 0 2 0 GV 1

new cap

,HDN

new cap

,HDN

20/12/16 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 GM 2 Collecting 80 cones

21/12/16 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 GV 1 Dropped 25 cones

21/12/16 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 SV 1 Garage for fuel

14/12/16 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 SV 3

Early morning assisting Camara 

van collected sv1

14/12/16 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 SV 2 Bring truck to station

14/12/16 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 SV 2 Van had puncher

02/12/16 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 GV 1 Tipped and cleaned van

05/12/16 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 GV 1 Tipped and cleaned van

05/12/16 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 GV 1 Tipped and cleaned van

01/12/16 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 SV 2 Van check list

02/12/16 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 CV

Dropped down Mahon over to get 

a van

02/12/16 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 GV 2 Gully van 2

02/12/16 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 SV 2 Van check list

DCC DRAINAGE DIVISION Gully Cleaning Program 

Daily Returns Statistics For - All Areas In The South Central Area, All Machines, All Operators, December 2016 

Insp.=Inspected, Cl.=Cleaned, Om.=Omissions, Rep.=Repairs, M/V=Machine/Van, MDN=Machine Digging Needed, HDN=Hand 

DiggingNeeded, OSP= On-StreetParking, TS= TrafficSensitive

1 MAINT STH

20/12/16 47 HANOVER STREET WEST 0 0 0 1 MAINT STH

20/12/16 47 FRANCIS STREET 0 0 0

1 MAINT STH

19/12/16 32 BRIDGEFOOT STREET 0 0 0 1 MAINT STH

19/12/16 32 BRIDGEFOOT STREET 0 0 0

13:19

Compiled by

Roy O'Donnell 

Mark Gleeson

Brendan O'Neill 1
Page 57

javascript:__doPostBack('dgStreetDetails$_ctl1$_ctl0','')
javascript:__doPostBack('dgStreetDetails$_ctl1$_ctl1','')
javascript:__doPostBack('dgStreetDetails$_ctl1$_ctl2','')
javascript:__doPostBack('dgStreetDetails$_ctl1$_ctl3','')
javascript:__doPostBack('dgStreetDetails$_ctl1$_ctl4','')
javascript:__doPostBack('dgStreetDetails$_ctl1$_ctl5','')
javascript:__doPostBack('dgStreetDetails$_ctl1$_ctl6','')
javascript:__doPostBack('dgStreetDetails$_ctl1$_ctl7','')
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170971
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170971
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170970
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170970
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171032
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171032
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171149
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171149
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171366
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171366
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171264
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171264
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170534
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170534
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171147
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171147
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171148
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171148
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170668
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170668
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171013
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171013
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171150
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171150
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170532
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170532
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171446
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171446
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170602
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170602
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171378
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171378
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171405
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171405
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171418
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171418
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171055
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171055
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171063
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171063
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171064
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171064
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170605
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170605
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170637
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170637
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170639
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170639
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170520
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170520
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170568
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170568
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170577
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170577
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170589
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170589
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171328
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171327
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171327
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171328
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171329
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171330
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171330
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171329


ROAD DRAINAGE

MAINTENANCE UNIT
GULLY CLEANING OPERATIONS 11/01/17

09/12/16 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 SV 3

Tipped sv3 collected gm1 

returned to Bannon rd

09/12/16 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 0 0 0 0 SV 3 Left gm1 collected sv3

22/12/16 47 MARROWBONE LANE DEPOT 1 1 0 0 SV 1 At Gpo with jet

02/12/16 48 HERBERTON RD PL @ 84 1 1 0 0 GV 1

02/12/16 48 ROTHE ABBEY PL @ jcn s c rd 3 3 0 1 GV 1

16/12/16 48 SUIR ROAD 0 0 0 0 GV 2 No flooding

02/12/16 49 BULFIN RD PL @ jcn s c rd 2 2 0 0 GV 1

16/12/16 49 BULFIN ROAD 0 0 0 0 GV 2 No flooding

13/12/16 49 EMMET ROAD 0 0 0 0 GV 1

NEEDS GULLY - Pending o/so 

touch of fun

02/12/16 49 SPA ROAD PL @ eurospar 1 1 0 0 GV 1

16/12/16 50 GRATTAN CRESCENT 0 0 0 0 GV 2 No flooding

02/12/16 50

JAMESTOWN ROAD PL @ 18 and near 

18 3 2 1 0 GV 1

09/12/16 50 O'HOGAN ROAD 0 0 0 1 MAINT STH cleared gully

02/12/16 50 OLD NAAS RD PL @ jcn naas rd 2 2 0 0 GV 1

16/12/16 51

BALLYFERMOT RD kylemore rd-coldcut 

rd 0 0 0 0 GV 2 No flooding

12/12/16 51 KILEEN RD PL at entrance to thorntons 3 3 0 0 GV 1

16/12/16 51 KYLEMORE RD ballyfermot rd-naas rd 0 0 0 0 GV 2 No flooding

12/12/16 51

KYLEMORE RD PL bus stops landen-

r/about 5 5 0 0 GV 1

12/12/16 51 LE FANU ROAD PL at 286 4 4 0 0 GV 1

06/12/16 52 BENMADIGAN ROAD 0 0 0 1 MAINT STH new Buffalo grid

22/12/16 52 DAVITT RD FT PATH GRID PL @ luas 2 2 0 0 GV 1

05/12/16 52 DAVITT ROAD 0 0 0 3 MAINT STH HDN

16/12/16 52 DAVITT ROAD 0 0 0 0 GV 2 No flooding

22/12/16 52 DAVITT ROAD 1 1 0 0 GCCTV

Cctv-1 stretch abandoned T/D 

70,75 m

22/12/16 52 DAVITT ROAD 1 1 0 0 GV 1 CQ,,,,,,at lights least crossing

16/12/16 52 DAVITT ROAD DEPOT 0 0 0 0 GM 2 Diesel tank empty,cctv done

16/12/16 52 HERBERTON DRIVE 0 0 0 0 GV 2 No flooding

06/12/16 52 SPERRIN ROAD 0 0 0 1 MAINT STH gully repair

new gully

,HDN

reset gully

,HDN

reset gully

,HDN

reset gully

,HDN

16/12/16 53 ARMAGH ROAD 0 0 0 1 MAINT STH HDN

05/12/16 53 BUNTING ROAD PL opp 102 1 1 0 0 GV 1

14/12/16 53 HAROLDS CROSS RD PL @ fmk finance 2 2 0 0 GV 1

14/12/16 53

HAROLDS CROSS RD PL @ mount 

drummond ave 4 4 0 0 GV 1

15/12/16 53

HAROLDS CROSS RD PL greenmount-

canal X 6 6 6 0 0 GV 1

15/12/16 53

HAROLDS CROSS RD PL mt jerome-

greenmount 5 5 0 0 GV 1

15/12/16 53

HAROLDS CROSS RD PL opp convent 

parkside 6 6 0 0 GV 1

14/12/16 53

HAROLDS CROSS RD PL opp convent 

parkside 2 2 0 0 GV 1

15/12/16 53 KIMMAGE RD LWR PL @ jcn casimir rd 1 1 0 0 GV 1

1 MAINT STH

07/12/16 53 ARMAGH ROAD 0 0 0 1 MAINT STH

07/12/16 53 ARMAGH ROAD 0 0 0

1 MAINT STH

07/12/16 53 ARMAGH ROAD 0 0 0 1 MAINT STH

07/12/16 53 ARMAGH ROAD 0 0 0

13:19

Compiled by

Roy O'Donnell 

Mark Gleeson

Brendan O'Neill 2
Page 58

http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170928
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170928
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170909
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170909
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171445
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171445
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170596
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170596
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170597
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170597
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171151
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171151
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170594
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170594
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171152
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171152
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171033
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171033
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170593
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170593
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171154
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171154
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170592
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170592
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170916
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170916
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170591
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170591
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171155
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171155
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170974
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170974
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171156
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171156
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170972
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170972
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170973
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170973
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170768
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170768
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171424
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171424
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170633
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170633
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171158
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171158
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171421
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171421
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171423
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171423
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171262
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171262
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171159
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171159
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170767
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170767
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171260
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171260
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170667
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170667
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171069
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171069
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171068
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171068
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171136
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171136
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171134
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171134
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171135
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171135
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171070
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171070
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171137
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171137
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170741
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170742
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170742
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170741
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170739
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170740
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170740
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170739


ROAD DRAINAGE

MAINTENANCE UNIT
GULLY CLEANING OPERATIONS 11/01/17

22/12/16 53

KIMMAGE RD LWR sundriverd-

kimmagerdwest 1 1 0 0 GV 1 CQ,,,side of 5

02/12/16 53 LIME KILN LANE PL all gullies 7 6 1 0 SV 2 Road finished

15/12/16 53 PARNELL RD PL opp 1 1 1 0 0 GV 1

15/12/16 53 SAINT CLARE'S AVENUE PL all gullies 2 2 0 0 GV 1

13/12/16 53

WALKINSTOWN DRIVE PL ft path at 

107 1 1 0 0 GV 1

NOTE: The Omissions And Repairs Figures Are Taken From The Daily Return Sheets And Not The Omissions/Repairs Sheets

13:19

Compiled by

Roy O'Donnell 

Mark Gleeson

Brendan O'Neill 3
Page 59

http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171426
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171426
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170595
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=170595
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171138
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171138
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171139
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171139
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171036
http://vm-applive01/DrainageGullyManagement/ViewOmissionsRepairs.aspx?StreetVisID=171036




 

 

 

SOUTH CENTRAL AREA LIBRARY EVENTS FOR JANUARY 2017 
 

BALLYFERMOT LIBRARY 

Non Regular or 
Regular Events 

Event Category Event Title 
Suitable 

Audience 
Date and Time 

Non- Regular Exhibition Midland - Lár Tíre: Cycling the 
MGWR from Past to Prese 

All  Ongoing 

Non- Regular Exhibition 1916 Street Banners & Art 
Exhibition 

All  Ongoing 

Non- Regular FACILITATED 
GROUPS  

HSE Project Meeting   

Non-Regular FACILITATED 
GROUPS 

BCFE link with schools  - 
Successful Me 

Class based  

Non-Regular FACILITATED 
GROUPS 

Womens Aid – one to one 
meeting 

  

Non-Regular FACILITATED 
GROUPS 

Communiversity in conjunction 
with NUI Maynooth 

  

Non- regular FACILITATED 
GROUPS 

Restorative Practise with 
Ballyfermot Partnership 

  

Non–Regular FACILITATED 
GROUPS 

Interconnect Project, creative 
group project in association with 
the HSE 

Closed  

Non-Regular Story time Celebration event for Story time  Pre-schoolers 
and parents 

Enquire within branch. 

Regular Audio Book Club Youthreach Audio Book club  Wednesdays at 2.15pm  

FACILITATED 
GROUPS 

FACILITATED 
GROUPS 

Healthy Food Made Easy Adults Tuesdays 10.00 – 12.30  

Regular FACILITATED 
GROUPS 

WALK – Walkinstown Adult 
Learning  group 

Closed Wednesdays 2.15pm – 
5pm 

Regular FACILITATED 
GROUPS 

WALK – Walkinstown Adult 
Learning group 

Closed Mondays 1.30pm – 
4.00pm  

Regular FACILITATED 
GROUPS 

Ballyfermot Heritage Group Closed  

Regular Workshop Creative Writing group  All  Every second 
Wednesdays @ 6.30pm 

Regular FACILITATED 
GROUPS 

COPD info session  Last Thursday of month  
2.00pm – 4.00pm 

Regular Facilitated Group Monday Afternoon Book Club  Adult 2nd  Monday of month @ 
2pm 

Regular Facilitated 
Groups or 
organisations 

Junior Writers Group Adult Thursdays at 6.00pm 

Regular Facilitated Group West Dublin Widow’s C.A.R.E. Adult Last Friday on the Month 

Page 61



 

 

Non Regular or 
Regular Events 

Event Category Event Title 
Suitable 

Audience 
Date and Time 

- at 11.00am 

Regular Facilitated 
Groups or 
Organisations 

Writers Group Adult Wednesdays  at 6.00pm 

Regular Book Club Junior Book Club Children 7yrs – 
9yrs 

Tuesday 10th   @ 
3.30pm 

Regular Book Club Junior Book Club Children 10yrs – 
12yrs 

Thursday 15th  @ 
3.30pm 

Regular Facilitated 
Groups or 
Organisations 

St. John of God, Walkinstown, 
Book Club 

Adult Mondays & Thursdays  
10.30am – 1.00pm 

Regular Workshop Story Telling for Toddlers Children Every Tuesday @ 
11.00am 

 
 

DOLPHIN’S BARN LIBRARY 
 

Chinese New Year  - Children’s Event. 
 

Thursday 2 February at 3.30pm –  
Carp Fish Kite workshop and storytelling with Anna Kadzik 

 

Regular or Non 
Regular 

Type of Event Event Title Audience Date and Time 

Regular Book Club Grand Canal Book 
Club 

Adult 2nd Monday of the month 
at 7pm 

Regular Book Club Beyond the Pale Adult  External Book Club  

Regular Book Club Magaret Mason Adult External Book Club 

Regular Book Club Dolphins Barn Book 
Club 

Adult Last Thursday of the 
month at 11am 

Regular Book Club Afternoon Book Club Adult 3rd Wednesday of the 
month  

Regular Book Club Page Turners Adult External Book Club – 
Meets every 6 weeks 

Regular Workshop  Parent & Toddler 
Group 

Parent and 
Toddler 

Every Tuesday 10.30 
am-11.30 am 

Regular Book Display Get Fit – Get Healthy Adult Duration 

Non Regular School Visit Junior Infants Loreto 
Primary School 

Child 11.30  Friday 13th Jan 

Non Regular School Visit Loreto Primary School Child 11.30  Friday 20th Jan 

Non Regular School Visit Loreto Primary School Child 11.30  Friday 27th Jan 

 
 

 

Page 62



 

 

 
INCHICORE LIBRARY 

 

Regular /Non 
Regular 

Type of Event Event Title Adult / 
Child / 
Family 

Date and Time 

Non Regular Book Display New  Adult Book Display Adult ongoing 

Non Regular Book Display New children’s Book Display Children ongoing 

Non Regular  Miscellaneous Notice Board Display Adult ongoing 

Non Regular Exhibition 
 

Children’s Art Competition Display Children  

Non Regular Book Display Dublin Literary Award 2017 Adult January 

Non Regular Miscellaneous Display of Great Book of 
Kilmainham 

Family Oct ongoing 

Non Regular Miscellaneous Film Showing Adult 11th Jan @ 6pm 
sharp 

Non Regular Miscellaneous Film Showing Adult 18th Jan @ 6pm 
sharp 

Regular Faciliated 
Group 

Knitting Circle Adult Thursdays from 3 – 
4pm 

Regular Book Club The Monday Book Club reading 
‘Family Life’ by Akhil Sharma  

Adult First Monday of 
Month 9th January 

Regular Book Club 
 

Wednesday Book Club reading ‘The 
Spinning Heart’ by Donal Ryan 

Adult Last Wed of Month 
25th January @ 
6.30pm 

Regular Workshop Colouring Children During the month 

Regular Workshop 
 

Story Time  Children Tuesdays at 2.30 – 
3.15pm 

 
WALKINSTOWN LIBRARY 

 

Non Regular or 
Regular Events 

Event Category Event Title Audience Date and Time 

Regular Facilitated Groups and 
Organisations 

Knitting Circle Adult Wednesday’s 6pm-8pm 

Regular Facilitated Groups and 
Organisations 

GIY(Grow-it-yourself) Adult 3rd Monday of the month 
from 6.30pm-7.45 
(finished for summer 
back in September) 

Regular Facilitated Groups and 
Organisations 

Adult Readers’ Group Adult 2nd Thurs. @ 3.30pm 

Regular Facilitated Groups and 
Organisations 

Crochet Group  Adult Saturdays @11am 
 

Regular Conversation 
Exchange 

Ciorcal Comhra (Irish 
language exchange) 

Adult  Mondays 6pm-7pm 

Regular Mother and Toddler 
Group 

 Mother and toddler group Children  Tuesdays 11am-
12.30pm 

Regular Book Club  Children’s Book Club Children 4th Monday of the month 
@ 4pm( Finished for 
summer back in 
September) 

 

Page 63





SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 

DUBLIN CITY SPORT & WELLBEING PARTNERSHIP REPORT  

18TH  JANUARY 2017 

 
 
The 2017 Lord Mayor’s 5 Alive Challenge kicked off on New Year’s Day in the Phoenix Park with the 
Liffey Valley Tom Brennan Memorial 5K. The five race series is proving as popular as ever with the 
maximum 450 entrants signing up within an hour of registration opening. The next race is the 
Raheny Shamrocks 5 mile on January 29th.The challenge runs from January to April and more details 
can be found at: www.dublincity.ie/lord-mayor-5-alive-challenge-2017 
 
Ballyfermot Swimming & Water Sports sessions resume this month each Monday from 5-6pm in 
Sports & Fitness Ballyfermot. A number of DCSWP Sports Officers are involved. The programme is 
open to referrals from the local welfare officer. The Monday pool sessions have been running since 
March 2016 and cover swim technique/fitness, water safety, snorkelling & sea swimming outings in 
the Summer. Participants must have a good baseline standard of swimming as the training is of a 
high intensity.  
 
Opportunities are available for those interested to progress onto a Pool Lifeguard Course and 
achieve certification in this area. This may, in turn, open up employment prospects for them. 
However, the focus of the programme is to use the experience of successful candidates within the 
group in a peer to peer leadership model in order to sustain success. 
 
Club Support 
The local DCSWP Sports Officer supports and works with the coaches from St. Catherine’s Boxing 
Club & Tae Kwon-Do Club who both train on various evenings in St. Catherine’s Sports Centre and 
are always willing to take on new members. Likewise with Liberty Saints Rugby Club U13’s & 17’s 
who train on Tuesday & Thursday nights in Liberty Park on Basin Lane. 
 
The Liberties Club (Youth Justice Project) 
The local DCSWP Sports Officer will be assisting youth workers from The Liberties Club to provide a 
soccer drop-in every Monday night from 8-10pm in St. Catherine’s Sports Centre. This acts as a form 
of outreach to young people in the area and the hope is that they will join the club and get involved 
in activities on an ongoing basis. 
 
TULSA Programme South City Family Support Services 
The DCSWP Sports Officer is working with the South City Family Support Services TULSA to help build 
resilience for a group of young people aged 8 to 12 years of age, allowing them to find their voice.  
The group will be taking part in a 12-week Water Confidence / Snorkelling programme taking place 
in Crumlin Swimming pool on Tuesday afternoons from 3-4pm.  The Programme will run from 
January to April. 
 
Teen Gym - Introductory Programme 
The DCSWP Sports Officer, with the support of the St. Catherine’s Gym staff, has organised another 
four week block of Teen Gym sessions for new participants, which commenced on Saturday 7th 
January. This introductory programme is held on Saturday afternoons after the gym is closed to the 
public. The teens are given exclusive access to equipment and instructor supervision.  
 

Page 65

http://www.dublincity.ie/lord-mayor-5-alive-challenge-2017


Once teens have completed these four weeks they may then use the gym after school on weekdays 
and up to 6pm daily during the school holidays. We constantly have new teens signing up for this 
programme and we have also retained a large number of teens who have progressed from Teen 
Gym to a full gym membership. 
 
 The cost of Teen Gym is €2 per session and is open to any teen from the age of 13 – 16 years. 
Teen Gym also operates every Wednesday & Thursday in Clogher Road Sports Hall (St. Kevin’s 
College) 
 
Car Driving Programme 
The local DCSWP Sports Officer will be assisting both the Fountain Youth Project & Foróige DAN 
Youth Justice Project with their Safe Car Driving Programme which will take place on Wednesday 
afternoons across 4 weeks from late January to late February. 
 
Bluebell Change For Life – This 8 week general health and fitness based programme consists of a 
health check, body measurements, weekly weigh-ins, nutrition advice and then final reassessments. 
Three fitness classes are also provided as part of the programme - Zumba on Mondays from 7-8pm, 
Walking/Jogging on Wednesdays from 6-7pm and Step Aerobics on Thursdays from 7-8pm. All 
classes take place in Bluebell Community Centre. This programme is open to all adults in the local 
community. 
 
Fatima Change For Life – As above. Three fitness classes are also provided as part of the programme 
– Step Aerobics on Mondays from 6-7pm, Walking/Jogging on Wednesdays from 6-7pm and Circuit 
Training on Thursdays from 6-7pm. All classes take place in the F2 Centre. This programme is open to 
all adults in the local community. 
 
Activities for Over 55’s 
Aqua Aerobics, every Wednesday from 11am – 12pm in Guinness Pool 
Chair Aerobics, every Thursday from 10.30am – 11.30am in Donore Avenue Community Centre 
Indoor Bowls, every Friday from 12pm – 1pm in Donore Avenue Community Centre 
Go for Life Games, every Tuesday from 10.30am – 11.30am in Walkinstown Social Services Centre 
 
Fencing Programme with St. Patrick’s Choir School each Thursday through January at 1.30pm. This 
will teach students the basics of Olympic Fencing. 
 
Addiction Response Crumlin (5 Programmes) 
Mondays: 11am to 1pm, Clogher Rd – Recovered Group 
Tuesdays: 11am to 1pm, Urban Gym Drimnagh – Recovery Via Sport Group 1 
Thursday: 11am to 1pm, Urban Gym Drimnagh – Recovery Via Sport Group 2 
Fridays: 11am to 12pm, Clogher Rd – Women’s Group 
Fridays: 11am to 1pm, Clogher Rd – Addiction Response Men 
 
Inchicore Sports Centre - New Fitness Classes 
Mondays: Pump & Tone, 6- 7pm 
Tuesdays: TRX, 7- 8pm 
Saturdays: Spin & Core, 11-12pm 
 
Pay as you go - 5 euro per class … all levels welcome … no need to book! 
 
 
 

Page 66



Football 
 
Football Drop-in every Monday from 5pm to 6pm in Ballyfermot Sports & Fitness for 5 – 7 year olds 
(skill development) and every Thursday from 5pm to 6pm in Inchicore Sports Centre for teens 
(social, diversion, skill development). 
 
Sprog Soccer takes place every Monday from 4pm to 5pm in St. Catherine’s Sports Centre for 4 – 8 
year olds. 
 
Men’s Homeless Street League resumes each Friday from 11am – 1pm in St. Catherine’s Sports 
Centre. 
 
Girl’s Football Drop-in every Monday from 5pm to 6pm in St. Catherine’s Sports Centre for 6 – 11 
year olds. 
 
School Football Sessions will run in St. Catherine’s Sports Centre every Monday & Tuesday morning 
for local schools in the area. 
 
Walking Football for the Active Retirement over 65’s – Clogher Road Sports Centre every Friday 
from 1.30pm – 2.30pm (resumes 27th January for a 5 week run). 
 
Club Development: the Football Development Officer for the Inchicore/Bluebell/Kilmianham areas 
will facilitate a ‘Safeguarding Child Welfare’ Workshop on Thursday January 26th in Inchicore Sports 
Centre for local clubs in the area. 
 
‘Breakfast Football’ takes place at Our Lady of Lourdes School, Inchicore, every Friday from 8am – 
9am. This involves the local Football Development Officer working with the Garda Juvenile Liaison 
Officer and the local school to get children to attend school and to be on time.  
 
Cricket Development Officer Update 
 
Liaising with Sports Officers in the area to organise the running of cricket programs for the coming 
months. 
 
We have four different groups that participated in Table Cricket (an indoor miniature version 
of cricket played on a large table top, designed for physically challenged cricketers) before Christmas 
and we will be holding a tournament for the different groups in late January in Sports & Fitness 
Ballyfermot (date TBC).  
 
Organising days and times with schools in the area for ‘schoolyard cricket sessions’ to commence 
this month. In particular we will focus on schools that are entered in the Leprechaun Cup (Primary 
School’s Cricket Competition) such as Drimnagh Castle BNS & Scoil Colm. 
 
Rugby Development Officer Update 
 
Primary Schools 
Recruitment of players for Terenure College RFC’s Mini Girl’s Section through engagement with 
primary schools in the area: 

- St. Pius X GNS, Terenure; Tuesday mornings, mid Jan – mid Feb 
- Assumption Girls NS, Walkinstown, Wednesday mornings, mid Jan – mid Feb 
- Primary School Blitz, Wednesday 8th Feb, Terenure College RFC 

Page 67



 
Secondary Schools  
Drimnagh Castle: Coaching support for full contact boys’ rugby teams competing in DCC Cup U15 
blitzes and U18 competition.  
 
St. Patrick’s Cathedral School, Dublin 8: Coaching support for full contact boys’ rugby teams 
competing in DCC Cup U15 blitzes and U18 competition. Also coaching support for full contact girl’s 
rugby team taking part in participation blitzes. 
 
Player Development  
Continuation of U16 Metro Boy’s player development. This takes place fortnightly throughout the 
season on Mondays from 6-8pm in Donnybrook Stadium with a Shane Horgan Cup match over the 
February mid term.  
 
Leinster DCC Schools Competition 
Competition for secondary schools in the DCC area to help prepare them for Junior (U16) and Senior 
(U19) competitions next year. Please contact the Rugby Development Officer for more details. 
 
 

Antonia Martin, Manager, Sports Officers: antonia.martin@dublincity.ie  

Cormac Healy, Manager, Sports & Fitness Ballyfermot: don.daly@dublincity.ie  

Darragh Cunningham, St. Catherine’s Sports Centre: darragh.cunningham@dublincity.ie  

Mitch Whitty, Sports Officer: mitchell.whitty@dublincity.ie  

Catherine Flood, Sports Officer: catherine.flood@dublincity.ie  

Will Morris, Sports Officer: william.morris@dublincity.ie  

Sharon Kelly, Sports Officer: sharon.kelly@dublincity.ie  

Gareth Herbert, Sports Officer: gareth.herbert@dublincity.ie  

Derek Ahern, Sports Officer: derek.ahern@dublincity.ie  

Michael Moore, Soccer: michael.moore@fai.ie  

Marc Kenny, Soccer: marc.kenny@fai.ie  

David Rake, Soccer: david.rake@fai.ie  

Jonathan Tormey, Soccer: jonathan.tormey@fai.ie  

Ed Griffin, Boxing: shandygriffin@hotmail.com  

Fintan McAllister, Cricket: fintan.mcallister@cricketleinster.ie  

Aoife Thompson, Rugby: aoife.thompson@leinsterrugby.ie  

 

Report by 

Alan Morrin 

Staff Officer 

Dublin City Sport & Wellbeing Partnership  

 

  

 

Page 68

mailto:antonia.martin@dublincity.ie
mailto:don.daly@dublincity.ie
mailto:darragh.cunningham@dublincity.ie
mailto:mitchell.whitty@dublincity.ie
mailto:catherine.flood@dublincity.ie
mailto:william.morris@dublincity.ie
mailto:sharon.kelly@dublincity.ie
mailto:gareth.herbert@dublincity.ie
mailto:derek.ahern@dublincity.ie
mailto:michael.moore@fai.ie
mailto:marc.kenny@fai.ie
mailto:david.rake@fai.ie
mailto:jonathan.tormey@fai.ie
mailto:shandygriffin@hotmail.com
mailto:fintan.mcallister@cricketleinster.ie
mailto:aoife.thompson@leinsterrugby.ie


 

 

 

 

Page 69





                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

                                                           
                                       
                                                                                                       Development Department 

           Civic Offices 
 
                                                              14th December 2016 
To the Chairperson and Members of 
the South Central Area Committee 
 
Meeting: 18th January 2017 
 
Item No:  
 
With reference to the proposed disposal of a substation site on Curlew Road, 
Drimnagh, Dublin 8 to the ESB.  

 
Dublin City Council City Architects Division is developing a site at the junction of Knocknarea 
Road and Curlew Road, Drimnagh, Dublin 8 for the provision of 29 Rapid Build Housing 
Units to alleviate the requirement of emergency accommodation for homeless families.  
 
In accordance with the standard terms and conditions for the provision of an electricity 
supply, the City Council is required to provide a site for a substation free of charge to the 
ESB, in this instance the site of the new station is at the southern end of the site. The site is 
shown outlined red and coloured pink on attached Map Index SM-2016-0619 and has an 
approximate area of 12m2. 
 
It is proposed to dispose of the site in fee simple to the ESB subject to the following terms 
and conditions: 
 

1. The site will be transferred to the ESB free of charge. 
 

2. The E.S.B will pay a contribution of €750 (seven hundred and fifty euros) towards the 
City Council’s legal costs incurred in the transaction together with VAT and 
reasonable outlay. 

 
 
The disposal shall be subject to any such covenants and conditions as the Law Agent in his 
discretion shall stipulate. 
 
No Agreement enforceable at law is created or intended to be created until an exchange of 
contracts has taken place.  
 
 
 
 
Paul Clegg 
_________________ 
Executive Manager 

Page 71





Page 73





 
 
 
 

                                               Development Department 
                                                    Civic Offices.  
                                        
The Chairperson and Members       
South Central Area Committee. 
 
 
 

 
With reference to the proposed disposal of laneway abutting 18 Downpatrick Road, 
Crumlin, Dublin 12 

 

 
 
Ms. Roslyn Collins and Mr. Jon Flashman, current owners of 18 Downpatrick Road, Crumlin, 
Dublin 12, are in the process of selling their property and have applied to purchase the laneway 
abutting their property as above. It is now proposed to dispose of this laneway to the side of 18 
Downpatrick Road, Dublin 12 to Ms. Roslyn Collins and Mr Jon Flashman or the intended new 
owner Brendan O’Shea, as shown outlined in red and shaded pink on Map Index No. SM- 
2016-0625, subject to the following terms and conditions: 
 
 

1. That Dublin City Council dispose of the Council’s interest in subject plot for the 
consideration of €1,800 (one thousand and eight hundred euro). 

2. That the subject plot of approximately 43 m2 is shown outlined in red and shaded pink 
on Map Index No. SM- 2016-0625. 

3. That Dublin City Council shall transfer the unencumbered freehold title or equivalent in 
the subject plot. 

4. That the applicant shall pay Dublin City Council’s Valuer fee of €800 (eight hundred 
euro) plus VAT. 

5. That the applicant shall pay Dublin City Councils legal fees plus VAT together with legal 
costs of transfer which shall be agreed with the Council’s Law Agent. 

6. That the applicant shall be responsible for any VAT liability associated with this disposal 
and indemnify Dublin City Council against same.  

7. That this transaction shall be completed within 3 months of statutory approval being 
obtained. 

8. That this disposal is subject to the necessary consents and approvals being obtained. 

 
The agreement shall be subject to any other such terms and conditions as deemed appropriate 
by Dublin City Council’s Law Agent. 
 
No Agreement enforceable at law is created or intended to be created until an exchange of 
contracts has taken place.  
 
 
Paul Clegg 
______________________ 
Executive Manager  

Page 75





Page 77





DUBLIN CITY COUNCIL 
SOUTH CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 

14th December 2016 
 
Q1 Councillor Ray McHugh 

To ask the Area Manager to reconsider the refusal for a disable parking bay at 
(details supplied). This lady is an old age pensioner who is disabled, there are 
constantly cars parked outside her maisonette causing great inconvenience to her 
especially in bad weather and attending Doctor, Hospital visits or shopping. 
 
Reply 
The City Council’s criteria provide for the consideration of requests for disabled 
parking bays outside private residences. 

 
The City Council would not normally consider a request for a disabled parking bay 
outside a multi-unit building and in particular where there is no car at the address, as 
in this case.  The designation of a full-time disabled parking bay outside the house 
concerned, required for occasional use as above by one occupant of the four-unit 
dwelling, would not meet the Council’s criteria. 

 
Contact: Stephen Hickey, Senior Staff Officer Administration/Traffic Advisory Group 
Tel: 222 2528 
Email: traffic@dublincity.ie  
 

Q2 Councillor Ray McHugh 
To ask the Area Manager to arrange for an inspection of the dampness at (details 
supplied). 
 
Reply 
The Area Maintenance Officer is making arrangements to have this dwelling 

 inspected. Any necessary repairs by Housing Maintenance will be carried out. 
 

Contact:  Frank D’arcy, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance Section 
Tel:  222 3517 
Email:  frankg.darcy@dublincity.ie 

 
Q3 Councillor Daithí Doolan 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 

 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q4 Councillor Daithí Doolan 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q5 Councillor Daithí Doolan 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q6 Councillor Daithí Doolan 

Page 79

mailto:traffic@dublincity.ie


To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q7 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 

To ask the Area Manager if a copy of the inventory taken when Nicholas and Myra 
Carman's Hall was cleared out can be given to me please? I have requested this but 
to date have not received a copy. Community groups are anxious to get their 
equipment back that was locked in the building which included computers, laptops, 
uniforms and personal case files. 
 
Reply 
The building was leased to Dublin City Council with the instruction that all items in the 
building were to be disposed of. All paper files were shredded by an outside 
company engaged by the contractor. There are approximately 20 pallets of books, 
photographs, trophies, furniture, etc held in storage. There were no uniforms in the 
building. These items can be inspected by prior arrangement and the consent of the 
owner of the property. 

  
Contact:  Brian Byrne, Housing Manager, Housing & Community Services 
Tel:  222 5153 
Email brian.byrne@dublincity.ie 
 

Q8 Councillor Rebecca Moynihan 
To ask the Area Manager to give a statement on the following (details supplied).  
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q9 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 
To ask the Area Manager to investigate the condition of the tree at (details supplied). 
Residents are very concerned that it is causing structural damage and is a safety 
risk.  
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q10 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 

 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q11 Councillor Daithí Doolan 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q12 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 

To ask the Area Manager to investigate the leaking roof at (details supplied). The 
tenant’s bedroom is being damaged and is very frustrated that he has reported this 5 
times but council had not taken any action to date. 

 

Page 80



Reply 
The Area Maintenance Officer is making arrangements to have this dwelling 

 inspected in relation to the report of a leak. This request was logged on Housing 
 Maintenance computer system on 21st November 2016.   

 
Contact:  Frank D’arcy, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance Section 
Phone:     222 3517 
Email:     frankg.darcy@dublincity.ie  
 

Q13 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 
To ask the Area Manager to investigate the serious leak in the roof of extension at 
(details supplied). The tenant is very concerned that her ceiling is going to collapse. 
She has reported this on a few occasions and the council called out and drilled a hole 
in the ceiling but this has made it worse. 
 
Reply 
The roof on the extension has been inspected and found to be in need of  repairs. 

 This work has been issued to a contractor and is expected to be completed within 
 the next two weeks. 
 

Contact:  Frank D’arcy, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance Section 
Tel:   222 3517 
Email:  frankg.darcy@dublincity.ie 
 

Q14 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 
To ask the Area Manager why the ramps at (details supplied) have not been 
repaired. 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q15 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 

To ask the Area Manager to fix the pothole at (details supplied) which has been there 
5 years. 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q16 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 

To ask the Area Manager if the trees that have died at (details supplied) can be 
replaced? 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q17 Councillor Daithí Doolan 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q18 Councillor Daithí Doolan 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 

 
Reply 

Page 81



A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 
Q19 Councillor Daithí Doolan 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q20 Councillor Daithí Doolan 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q21 Councillor Daithí Doolan 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 

 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q22 Councillor Rebecca Moynihan 

To ask the Area Manager to ask TAG to begin the process to install speed ramps 
along St. James Terrace which is a residential area which is used a cut through to 
avoid traffic lights.  
 
Reply 
The Traffic Advisory Group at its meeting of 19th January, 2012, reported that a 
speed survey was carried out on St. James’s Terrace on 12th December, 2011. The 
speed survey indicated that there was little movement of traffic and that the 85th 
percentile speed was measured to be 31 km/h.  The Traffic Advisory Group, 
therefore, at the time, did not recommend traffic calming on St. James’s Terrace as 
the criteria for the provision of speed ramps was not satisfied.   
 
The request will be referred again to the Traffic Advisory Group for further 
examination and report. 

 
Contact: Stephen Hickey, Senior Staff Officer Administration/Traffic Advisory Group 
Tel: 222 2528 
Email: traffic@dublincity.ie 
 

Q23 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
To ask the Area Manager that the following be looked at (details supplied)? 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q24 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

To ask the Area Manager that I am given an update on the housing application of 
(details supplied)? 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q25 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

Page 82

http://webmail/owa/redir.aspx?C=A8SY_RRQ7Sd1FCPqMH9EVdPgu-BoiPzDXxku3ozUFAQLaYCP_xjUCA..&URL=http%3a%2f%2fscanmail.trustwave.com%2f%3fc%3d6600%26d%3dya292I0t1A_YHSAD29zlK6aEYRLGcZMDdXKfbG5MMg%26s%3d342%26u%3dhttp%253a%252f%252f2%252eTo
mailto:traffic@dublincity.ie


To ask the Area Manager that consideration be given to the preparation of a park 
upgrade plan for the small open space/park next to Ballyfermot Civic with a little 
expenditure and maintenance. This small area could become a little gem of a park 
some planting, contour paths, additional entrances could assist in it realising its full 
potential. I would welcome an evening/afternoon meeting with residents to discuss 
same. 

 
Reply 
There are no plans at present to upgrade the space next to the Civic Centre as 
resources are presently being focused on the new skate and play park at Le Fanu 
Park. This facility is planned to be completed before the end of 2017 and will be less 
than 1 km from the Ballyfermot Civic Space. 

  
Contact: Sean Redmond, Executive Parks Superintendent  
Tel: 222 3435 
Email:  sean.redmond@dublincity.ie 
 

Q26 Councillor Vincent Jackson 
To ask the Area Manager that in the interest of waste reduction, two additional bins 
be provided outside entrances of St. John`s College, Le Fanu Road, Ballyfermot and 
the entrance of Kylemore College, Kylemore Road. These two schools generate 
large amounts of litter on our streets and the provision of bins would assist local 
efforts to keep the area clean. 
 
Reply 
Waste Management Services will relocate two litter bins from the general vicinity of 
this area to outside the entrances to the above mentioned schools. This work will be 
carried out before the end of this month. 

 
Contact: Mick Boyle, Senior Staff Officer, Waste Management Services 
Tel: 2224240 
Email: mick.boyle@dublincity.ie 

 
Q27 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

To ask the Area Manager to bring forward an Environmental Improvement Plan for 
the business district of Kylemore Road, Ballyfermot. Many furniture, tile and carpet 
shops operate here on this major route towards the west, however no money has 
ever being spent on improving the streetscape. 

 
Reply 
Currently a process has commenced to prepare a vision and strategy for Ballyfermot 
Road Public Realm Improvements. A process has commenced to prepare a vision 
and strategy for public realm improvements on Ballyfermot Road. Continuous and 
further improvements in public realm in Ballyfermot and Cherry Orchard will be made 
over the coming years. Environmental improvements to Kylemore Road will be 
considered as part of this process of environmental improvements. 
 
Contact:  Bruce Phillips, Senior Executive Officer, South Central Area Office 
Tel: 222 5108 
Email:  bruce.phillips@dublincity.ie 

 
Q28 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

To ask the Area Manager to address issues which regularly are mentioned in the 
local press about dampness and anti-social behaviour in the Claddagh Court Older 

Page 83

mailto:sean.redmond@dublincity.ie


Person’s Complex at Claddagh Green, Ballyfermot, Dublin 10. This is a beautiful 
complex however it’s getting bad press lately with the issues I mention above. 
 
Reply 
The Area Maintenance Officer reports that there were issues with the roof of some 
units in this complex. The necessary roof repairs have been carried out. 

 
Contact:  Frank D’arcy, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance Section 
Tel:  222 3517 
Email: frankg.darcy@dublincity.ie 

 
Q29 Councillor Vincent Jackson 

To ask the Area Manager that a full set of out of hours numbers be provided to 
Elected Members in relation to contact persons for housing, cleansing, illegal horses 
etc. All too often the emergency number is insufficient to address issues we come 
into contact with. 
 
Reply 
Customer Services is responsible for answering the out of office/emergency  number 
from 8.00am to 6.00pm Monday to Friday they can be contacted at Tel. 01 222 2222 
or 01 222 1000 The Traffic Control Room  is responsible for the out of hours services  
Tel 01 6796186 for the out of hours service. 

 
Contact: Siobhan Brazil, Manager – Customer Services Centre, Corporate Services 
Tel: 222 5811 
Email: Siobhan.brazil@dublincity.ie 

 
Any issue relating to the Control of Horses after business hours should be relayed to 
An Garda Síochána.  
 
The email address for the Control of Horses section casualtrading@dublincity.ie or 
the Customer Services Centre email customerservices@dublincity.ie can be used out 
of hours and is checked on a daily basis during business hours.  All reports or 
complaints out of hours will be forwarded to the Contractor by the Control of Horses 
Section. 
 
Contact:  Linda Hennessy, Senior Staff Officer, Licensing Unit, 
Tel:  222 3368 
Email:  linda.hennessy@dublincity.ie 
 
It is not possible to provide a single telephone number or contact name for a waste 
management employee who would be in a position to respond to direct calls from 
elected members on a continuous basis or after hours if required. Instead we have a 
constantly changing staff list for employees who are working outside normal hours or 
shift patterns. Within the City Centre for example we have cleansing staff that 
operate 24 hours a day and 7 days a week however these staff rotate on a regular 
basis and are often roistered off depending on their shift schedule. In the suburbs we 
have skeleton staff working overtime on weekends but again the persons involved 
change frequently and it would not be appropriate to have rostered off staff frequently 
contacted on their rest days. 
As part of the afterhours service waste management do supply the call centre, on a 
weekly basis, the names and contact number(s) of the appropriate staff member who 
is rostered to work that particular weekend, overtime or late night shift so that when a 
call is received this person can be contacted with the details of any complaint and 
respond accordingly. We consider this is the most efficient mechanism for 

Page 84

mailto:casualtrading@dublincity.ie
mailto:customerservices@dublincity.ie
mailto:linda.hennessy@dublincity.ie


responding to complaints or service requests received afterhours for the attention of 
the cleansing section. 
 
Contact John Tuohy Administrative Officer, Environment & Transportation  
Tel: 222 4521 
Email: john.tuohy@dublincity.ie 
 
Housing Maintenance 
Housing Maintenance has operated an after-hours on-call service for many years, 
which  service operates between the following times: 

1. Between 5.30 pm and 9.30 pm each night Monday – Thursday 
2. Between 5.30pm and 8.30pm Friday night. 
3. Between 8.30 am and 6.00 pm on Saturday and Sunday. 

 
The out of hours Emergency Phone Number for City Council tenants is  
6796186 -, and will be answered by either the Customer Services Centre, or the 
Traffic Control Centre, who receive out of hours/emergency calls for Housing 
Maintenance, and direct those calls to the  relevant service. 

 The Foreman on duty will take calls. The Foreman will have responsibility to 
decide what calls are emergency and what calls can be answered the next working 
day. If necessary, the Foreman may need to contact the tenant by phone to get a full 
assessment of the problem. 
 

 Where the Foreman deems a call to be an emergency, he will either call to 
the property himself or direct one of his team to respond. The works to be carried out 
on foot of the call is to make the property safe and any follow up works are to be 
referred to the Area Depot on the following day. 
 

 A voice-mail service from 9.00 pm each evening Mon – Thursday, and from 
8.00pm on Friday, and after 5.30 pm on Sat / Sun is also in place. Staff in 
Maintenance Repairs pick up the voice-mails the following working day and log the 
calls to the relevant depot. 
 
Contact: Frank D’arcy, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance Section 
Phone:   222 3517 
Email: frankg.darcy@dublincity.ie 
 

Q30 Councillor Críona Ní Dhálaigh 
To ask the Area Manager to investigate the following problem? It has been ongoing 
now for over a year and the resident is eager to have the problem resolved (details 
supplied). 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q31 Councillor Pat Dunne 
Can the Area Manager report on why a promise to install full pedestrian traffic lights, 
at the junction of Herberton Road and Dolphin Road at the canal bridge, has not 
happened? A commitment to have this much needed safety improvement was given 
to this councillor’s question no. 79 at the April 2015 SCAC. I have received reports of 
minor and near accidents at this junction in recent times and call for immediate 
action.  
 
Reply 

Page 85

mailto:john.tuohy@dublincity.ie


The proposed pedestrian crossing at the above junction is part of the Grand Canal 
cycle project which is one of a number of projects on hold at present pending the 
completion of Luas Cross City and re-allocation of funding. 

 
However, the Environment and Transportation Department now proposes to consider 
inclusion of the above pedestrian crossing on the Minor Capital Works Programme 
for the South Central Area for 2017.  Details of the Works Programmes will be 
available in 2017.    
 
Contact: Stephen Hickey, Senior Staff Officer, Administration/Traffic Advisory Group 
Tel: 222 2528 
Email: traffic@dublincity.ie  
 

Q32 Councillor Pat Dunne 
Can the Area Manager ask our Sewage Section to inspect the sewage outflow from 
(details supplied)? The manholes in the back gardens of these houses have a history 
of overflowing and residents are seeking an investigation to determine the cause of 
the blockage, which they believe is in the main sewer on the adjoining roadway.  
 
Reply 
Dublin City Council and Irish Water have responsibility for the main sewers on the 
public road. Manholes in the rear gardens and private connections are the 
responsibility of the householder(s).  
 
The main sewer has been checked and there are no problems. 
The householders will have to arrange for their own survey of their private drainage. 

 
Contact:  Colm Fitzpatrick, Senior Executive Engineer, Drainage Services 
Tel:  222 2702 
Email:  colm.fitzpatrick@dublincity.ie 

 
Q33 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Can the Area Manager arrange with our Housing Maintenance Section to replace the 
back door and also deal with dampness in the back bedroom where plaster is peeling 
from the wall at (details supplied).  

 
Reply 
The Area Maintenance Foreman is making arrangements to call to this dwelling and 
assess the back door for repairs/replacement. He will also inspect the back bedroom 
in relation to the report of dampness. 
 
Contact:  Frank D’arcy, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance Section 
Phone:     222 3517 
Email:     frankg.darcy@dublincity.ie  

 
Q34 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Can the Area Manager arrange with our Parks Section to have the trees in our Older 
Persons complex at Stannaway Court cut back as residents complain that 
overhanging and overgrown branches are blocking daylight when in bloom. 

 
Reply 
Housing Maintenance Southside mobile crew will prune the trees at this location over 

 the next few weeks. 
 
Contact:  Frank D’arcy, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance Section 

Page 86

mailto:traffic@dublincity.ie


Phone:   222 3517 
Email:  frankg.darcy@dublincity.ie  

 
 
Q35 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Can the Area Manager ask our Street Lighting Section to inspect and repair the 
street light adjacent to (details supplied).  Local residents report that this light is not 
working. 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q36 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Can the Area Manager ask our Derelict Sites Section and/or Dangerous Buildings to 
inspect the abandoned Apartment Complex at (details supplied) with a view to 
making it safe and to stop anti-social behaviour at this location. Can our Housing 
Development Section also examine this site to see if it could be brought into our 
housing stock? 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q37 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Can the Area Manager ask our Derelict Sites Section and our Housing Development 
Section to report on the progress relating to the possible purchase of the property at 
(details supplied)? 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q38 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Can our Area Manager ask our Housing Maintenance Section to ensure that 
immediate action is taken to resolve the issue of an infestation of rats in the 
extension of this dwelling (details supplied)? 

 
Reply 
The HSE Pest Control Unit called to this property but were unable to gain access.  
Arrangements have been made with them to call out to this property again. 

 
Contact: Frank D’arcy, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance Section 
Phone:  222 3517 
Email:  frankg.darcy@dublincity.ie  

 
Q39 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Can the Area Manager ask our Housing and Regeneration Sections to accept that 
our tenant at (details supplied) is living effectively on a building site and that her right 
to a peaceful and normal living space has been denied and as such in the 
circumstances she should be offered a suitable transfer? 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q40 Councillor Pat Dunne 

Page 87



Can the Area Manager ask our Road Maintenance Section to carry out permanent 
concrete repairs to the footpath at the entrance to (details supplied)?  Presently 
temporary repairs have only been tarmaced. 

 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q41 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 

To ask the Area Manager if our Housing Maintenance Department to organise for a 
tree at our property 12 Benmadigan Road to be pruned so that it no longer hangs 
over nor poses a public health and safety risk to the buildings or occupants on the 
property to its rear, 414 Mourne Road. 
 
Reply 
The tree at this location will be pruned in January 2017 by Housing Maintenance 
Mobile Southside Crew. 

 

Contact:  Frank D’arcy, Senior Executive Officer, Housing Maintenance Section 
Tel:   222 3517 
Email:   frankg.darcy@dublincity.ie  

 
Q42 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 

To ask the Area Manager if  our Traffic Department will investigate and provide this 
councillor with a report on the options for restricting traffic on James Terrace, 
Dolphins Barn so as to prevent it being used as a rat run. 
 
Reply 
The Traffic Advisory Group at its meeting of 19th January, 2012, reported that a 
speed survey was carried out on St. James’s Terrace on 12th December, 2011. The 
speed survey indicated that there was little movement of traffic and that the 85th 
percentile speed was measured to be 31 km/h.  The Traffic Advisory Group, 
therefore, at the time, did not recommend traffic calming on St. James’s Terrace as 
the criteria for the provision of speed ramps was not satisfied.   

 
The request will be referred again to the Traffic Advisory Group for further 
examination and report. 

 
Contact: Stephen Hickey, Senior Staff Officer Administration/Traffic Advisory Group 
Tel: 222 2528 
Email: traffic@dublincity.ie 

 
Q43 Councillor Tina MacVeigh 

To ask the Area Manager to please advise on the procedure for the installation of 
safety barriers and traffic measures to ensure the safe exit and road crossing of 
children and young people at the entrance to Loreto College on Sundrive Road. Cars 
parked along the footpath at the school entrance cause a hazard and the entrance is 
used by both senior and primary school goers. 
 
Reply 
There are double yellow lines on Sundrive Road outside Loreto College, from the 
junction with Crumlin Road continuing for approximately 98 metres, crossing the 
entrances to the College.  It is illegal under the Road Traffic Regulations to park on 
double yellow lines or on the pavement.   There are two School Wardens also in 
place at the entrance on Sundrive Road at school opening and closing times.  The 
request for barriers at the school entrance will be referred to the Area Traffic 

Page 88

mailto:traffic@dublincity.ie


Engineer for examination and report.  The Councillor will be informed of the 
recommendation in due course.     

 
There is also a pedestrian crossing on Sundrive Road at the College.   

 
Contact: Stephen Hickey, Senior Staff Officer Administration/Traffic Advisory Group 
Tel: 222 2528 
Email: traffic@dublincity.ie 
 

Q44 Councillor Hazel de Nortúin 
 To ask the Area Manager if there a plan for the pigeon club In Inchicore?  
 

Reply 
Dublin City Council is engaging with the Pigeon Club in St. Michaels Estate with a 
view to their relocation to an alternate premises in order to facilitate the overall 
redevelopment of the area. 

 
Contact: Marguerite Staunton, Acting Senior Executive Officer, Housing Department 
Tel: 2222065   
Email: marguerite.staunton@dublincity.ie 

 
Q45 Councillor Hazel de Nortúin 

To ask the Area Manager can the clean up on side roads be more frequent around 
leaf falling season? Residents become extremely frustrated around this time of year 
and call for the trees to be removed. I know there's normal time of 12 weeks but if it 
could be a seasonal change to counter act this. 
 
Reply 
Waste Management Services operate a leaves removal programme during the 
Autumn and Winter months. Priority is given to tree-lined streets with heavy 
pedestrian use and areas particularly prone to flooding.  Extra work on leaves 
removal is being carried out over the weekends. We continue this programme until all 
the leaves have gone and side roads are very much included as part of this 
programme. 
As it is not possible to get around to all areas at once, we also provide cleaning 
utensils and bags to resident groups who clear leaves in their areas. We remove the 
bags of leaves for them.  

 
Contact: Mick Boyle, Senior Staff Officer, Waste Management Services 
Tel: 2224240 
Email: mick.boyle@dublincity.ie 

 
Q46 Councillor Hazel de Nortúin 

To ask the Area Manager can there be a traffic count for school warden at St. John's 
Road/South Circular Road? One was conducted before but residents feel it wasn't 
done at the correct time and wasn't reflective of the need. 
 
Reply 
A traffic count to determine the suitability of assigning a School Warden at St. John’s 
Road / South Circular Road will be carried out within the next 2 week and the 
Councillor will be advised of the outcome. 
 
Contact:  Damien Hollywood, School Warden Co-ordinator, 
Tel: 222 2511 
Email: damien.hollywood@dublincity.ie 

Page 89

mailto:traffic@dublincity.ie
mailto:damien.hollywood@dublincity.ie


 
 
Q47 Councillor Hazel de Nortúin 

To Ask the Area Manager if there is a plan to deal with the invasive 
species Japanese Knotweed in the South Central area? There have been reports of 
the weed in the Kilmainham area. 
 
Reply 
Specific details regarding exact locations can be forwarded on to this office so that 
the presence of Japanese Knotweed can be investigated further. 

 
Contact: Sean Redmond, Executive Parks Superintendent, Parks Department 
Tel:   222 3435 
Email: sean.redmond@dublincity.ie 

 
Q48 Councillor Hazel de Nortúin 

To ask the Area Manager if there is a plan to deal with all the derelict sites in the 
Inchicore village area? Does DCC have a process to deal with residents who leave 
buildings idle? 
 
Reply 
The City Council continuously strives to prevent and eradicate dereliction throughout 
the entire city. The Derelict Sites Section where it is aware of any potential derelict 
site, whether it be in Inchicore or in any other area of the city, will investigate the site 
in question and enforce the legislative powers provided under the Derelict Sites Act 
1990 as appropriate.  
 
In cases where action is warranted the Derelict Sites Section will establish ownership 
and  advise the reputed owner(s)  of his/her obligations under the 1990 Act, and 
request the carrying out of required improvement works. Where this approach does 
not yield the desired results the formal procedures under the Derelict Sites Act are 
invoked. Sites that are not remediated and remain derelict are entered on the Derelict 
Sites Register which carries a resultant imposition of a levy equating to 3% of market 
value of the derelict site. Unpaid levies also attract interest of 1.25% per month.  
 
Contact: Nial Dully, Administrative Officer, Derelict Sites 
Tel:  222 3941 
Email:  nial.dully@dublincity.ie 

 
Q49 Councillor Hazel de Nortúin 

To ask the Area Manager if  the traffic lights sequence crossing over from outside the 
primary school in Chapelizod be monitored? There have been many near misses. 
The amber light for traffic doesn't give enough time before the green man comes on 
for pedestrians so pedestrians are walking out but cars are going straight through 
because the light is on amber.  
 
Reply 
ITS Section have now assessed the pedestrian signals at this location and noted that 
the signal sequences were operating correctly. Any vehicles going through crossing 
whilst pedestrian is shown a green signal, inviting them to cross, are doing so illegally 
and this is a matter for Garda Siochana enforcement.  
We have, however, added an extra delay, following vehicles being shown a red 
signal, and before the pedestrian green signal displays, to further protect 
pedestrians. 

 

Page 90

mailto:sean.redmond@dublincity.ie


Contact:  Seán Fallon, Assistant ITS Officer, Roads and Traffic ITS Section 
Tel:  222 6198 
Email:  sean.fallon@dublincity.ie  

 
Q50 Councillor Hazel de Nortúin 

To ask the Area Manager if the Sewage waste overflowing onto Blackditch Road 
from a manhole located at property No 9 Blackditch Road be fixed? While technically 
classed as a private drain, this sewerage leakage has been occurring for the last 2 
months and the owner is unable to address the issue as their property is not at fault - 
the blockage is to the main sewer line. Neighbouring properties 7, 5, 3 and 1 are 
faced with the constant flow of toilet waste flowing down past their front gates. You 
are also unable to walk on the pathway due to the flow. The stench is becoming 
unbearable and I believe this now constitutes a public health issue. 

 
Reply 
Dublin City Council and Irish Water have responsibility for the public sewers. This 
issue is arising on the private drain and is the responsibility for the householder(s) to 
maintain and repair. I note that No. 5 is a property owned by DCC. DCC Housing has 
been advised of this and has been requested to send one of their choke cars to 
attend.  

 
Contact:  Colm Fitzpatrick, Senior Executive Engineer, Drainage Division 
Tel:  2222702 
Email:  colm.fitzpatrick@dublincity.ie 

 
Q51 Councillor Hazel de Nortúin 

To ask the Area Manager if  the laneway running between Jamestown Avenue and 
Jamestown Road be cleaned and be monitored for illegal dumping? I've attached 
pictures of the issues. 

 
Waste Management Services had the above mentioned laneway cleaned on the 2nd 
December 2016 and we will continue to monitor this laneway for illegal dumping. 
 
Contact: Mick Boyle, Senior Staff Officer, Waste Management Services 
Tel: 2224240 
Email: mick.boyle@dublincity.ie 

 
Q52 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q53 Councillor Paul Hand 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)?  
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q54 Councillor Paul Hand 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Page 91

mailto:sean.fallon@dublincity.ie


Q55 Councillor Paul Hand 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q56 Councillor Paul Hand 
To ask the Area Manager if there is a policy of openly discriminating against Dublin 
12 in Dublin City Council. It appears as though there is, with the disgraceful 
downgrading of the Dublin 12 (Crumlin) Area Office in recent years. Does the office 
only get the necessary staff when it looks after Terenure and Harolds Cross as well? 
Areas which require little resources to improve and maintain. Crumlin, Kimmage, 
Drimnagh and Walkinstown have a greater combined population than both 
Ballyfermot and the South West Inner City, yet are treated like second class citizens. 
This can only lead me to the opinion that there is a policy of discriminating against 
Dublin 12 inside Dublin City Council. 

 
There is no policy of open or covert discrimination against Dublin 12 or any other 
postal district. 
 
It is an executive function within the limitations of staff and resources to deliver 
services to South Central. 
 
Contact: Peter Finnegan, Area Manager, South Central Area 
Tel:  222 2159 
Email:  peterjfinnegan@dublincity.ie 

 
Q57 Councillor Paul Hand 

To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q58 Councillor Paul Hand 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)?  
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q59 Councillor Paul Hand 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q60 Councillor Paul Hand 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q61 Councillor Paul Hand 
To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 
Reply 

Page 92

mailto:peterjfinnegan@dublincity.ie


A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 
 

Q62 Councillor Greg Kelly 
 To ask the Area manager to (details supplied)? 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q63 Councillor Greg Kelly 
 To ask the Area Manager to (details supplied)? 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q64 Councillor Greg Kelly 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q65 Councillor Greg Kelly 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q66 Councillor Greg Kelly 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q67 Councillor Greg Kelly 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q68 Councillor Greg Kelly 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q69 Councillor Greg Kelly 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 
Q70 Councillor Greg Kelly 
 To ask the Area Manager (details supplied)? 
 

Reply 
A report on (details supplied) was sent to the councillor. 

 

Page 93




	Agenda
	1 Minutes of Meeting held on 14th December 2016
	2 Questions to the South Central Area Manager
	3 Roads & Traffic Matters
	Traffic Status Report

	4 South Central Area Matters
	Housing Allocations Report January 2017 Tables
	Gully Report

	5 Community, Culture, Economic and Emergency Services
	Sports Report

	6 Planning and Economic Development Matters
	Map for Curlew Road
	Disposal of 18 Downpatrick Road (laneway)
	map - 18 Downpatrick Rd

	9 December Questions and Answers



